
AB 
SHAREHOLDER CABINET SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

MONDAY 24 JUNE 2019 
10.00 AM 
 

Bourges/Viersen Room - Town Hall 
 
 
 

AGENDA  

 Page No 

 
1. Apologies for Absence 

 
 

2. Declarations of Interest 
 

 

3. Shareholder Cabinet Sub-Committee - Overview Report 
 

3 - 216 

 
Emergency Evacuation Procedure – Outside Normal Office Hours 
 
In the event of the fire alarm sounding all persons should vacate the building by way of the nearest escape 
route and proceed directly to the assembly point in front of the Cathedral.  The duty Beadle will assume 
overall control during any evacuation, however in the unlikely event the Beadle is unavailable, this 
responsibility will be assumed by the Committee Chair. 

 
Recording of Council Meetings: Any member of the public may film, audio-record, take photographs and use 
social media to report the proceedings of any meeting that is open to the public. A protocol on this facility is 
available at:  
 
http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%20Recor
ding&ID=690&RPID=2625610&sch=doc&cat=13385&path=13385 
 

 

There is an induction hearing loop system available in all meeting rooms.  Some of the 
systems are infra-red operated, if you wish to use this system then please contact 
Pippa Turvey on 01733 452460  as soon as possible. 
 

 

Committee Members: 
 

Councillors: Allen, M Cereste, W Fitzgerald (Chair), D Seaton and I Walsh 
 

Substitutes: Councillors:   
 

Further information about this meeting can be obtained from Pippa Turvey on telephone 01733 
452460  or by email – Philippa.turvey@peterborough.gov.uk  

 
 

Public Document Pack

1

http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%20Recording&ID=690&RPID=2625610&sch=doc&cat=13385&path=13385
http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%20Recording&ID=690&RPID=2625610&sch=doc&cat=13385&path=13385


This page is intentionally left blank

2



 

 
SHAREHOLDER CABINET SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM No. 3 

24 June 2019 PUBLIC REPORT 

 

Report of: Acting Corporate Director, Resources 

Cabinet Member(s) responsible: Cllr Wayne Fitzgerald, Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for 
Adult Social Care, Health & Public Health 

 

Contact Officer(s): Peter Carpenter, Acting Corporate Director, Resources Tel. 452520 

 

Shareholder Cabinet Sub-Committee - Overview Report 
 

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S 
FROM: Acting Corporate Director, Resources 
 

Deadline date: N/A 

 
     It is recommended that the Shareholder Cabinet Sub-Committee: 
 

1. Note the remit of the Committee and the base data contained in the report. 
2. Approve the guidance note “Guidance for Member & Officers who serve on outside 

bodies” attached at Appendix K to the report and its circulation to all members and 
officers. 

3. Approve the work plan for future meetings as set out at paragraph 6.1 of the report. 
 

 
1. ORIGIN OF REPORT 

 
1.1 This report is submitted to the Shareholder Cabinet Sub-Committee following a resolution from 

Cabinet on 17 December 2018, which set up the Committee’s terms of reference. 
 

2. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT 
 

2.1 The purpose of this report is to: 
 

● Set out the remit and powers of the Committee (at its inaugural meeting); 
● Set the initial baseline in terms of financial performance and purpose of the Council 

companies, partnerships and charities that the Committee has responsibility for; 
● Highlight potential conflicts of interest that members need to be aware of in order to 

manager interactions more proactively; 
● Propose areas to review in more depth in future meetings. 

 
2.2 This report is for the Shareholder Cabinet Sub-Committee to consider under its Terms of 

Reference No. 3.3.2. (a), ‘To monitor performance and financial delivery of the companies, 
partnerships and charities set out above in line with Cabinet approved business plans by means 
of monthly performance monitoring and scrutiny.’ 
 

3. TIMESCALES  
  

Is this a Major Policy 
Item/Statutory Plan? 

NO If yes, date for 
Cabinet meeting  

N/A 

 

  

3

https://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/mgExecPostDetails.aspx?ID=713
https://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/mgExecPostDetails.aspx?ID=713


4. BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 
 

4.1 This report: 
 

● Sets out why the Council requires a Shareholder Cabinet Sub-Committee; 
● Sets out the Shareholder Cabinet Sub-Committee terms of reference and how it interacts 

with Cabinet; 
● Lists those Council companies, partnerships and charities that the Committee has 

responsibility for including their purpose and the latest set of accounts; 
● Sets out how the client function should work in support of the Council in managing its 

interactions with these entities; 
● Sets out a work programme in order for the Committee to ensure it has clear and effective 

Council governance and oversight of these entities. 
 

4.2 The Requirement for a Shareholder Cabinet Sub-Committee 
 
The Council has established a governance framework to demonstrate that it is clearly managing 
its differing responsibilities, as both an owner and separately as client of the Companies, 
partnerships and charities it has a significant interest in.  
 
Such governance will demonstrate:  
 

● Clear transparent and consistent accountability for the setting of policy, strategy and 
objectives for these organisations;  

● Clear transparent and consistent accountability for the financial and service performance 
and monitoring of each organisation for the services provided to the residents of 
Peterborough;  

● Oversight by a single Shareholder Cabinet Sub-Committee of all these organisations, 
meeting in public and subject to scrutiny through the Scrutiny Committee for Growth, 
Environment and Resources and accounting to the Council’s Audit Committee.  

 
To this extent, the Council has obtained external legal advice and has considered how a potential 
governance structure could operate to show clear and effective Council governance and 
oversight of these entities.  
 
The chart at Appendix A illustrates the governance structure. As part of this  structure, a new 
overarching Shareholder Cabinet Sub-Committee made up of 5 members would be formed with 
decision making and advisory powers. The Shareholder Cabinet Sub-Committee will be a sub-
committee of Cabinet so it will have the power to make decisions on behalf of the Cabinet in 
relation to the Council’s other organisations such as partnerships and charities. 
 
The benefits of adopting the structure and responsibilities set out in Appendix A are:  
 

● effective protection for the Council against potential poor performance and excessive risk, 
meeting Teckal requirements, timely decision making; 

● 3 tier split decision making in order to reflect and manage the Council’s differing 
responsibilities as owner and a client; 

● it monitors the Company’s (partnerships and charities) interaction with the Council and 
with each other in order to make recommendations to Cabinet;  

● it is in accordance with the external legal advice set out in the Local Authority Trading 
Company Report approved by Cabinet on the 17th December 2018. 

 
Whilst there is a risk that under this structure decision making is limited to members on the 
Shareholder Cabinet Sub-Committee, this can be mitigated by requiring key decisions relating to 
share ownership, financial investments and reserved matters to be approved only by Cabinet.  
 
The Council’s Monitoring Officer and Section 151 Officer will provide support to the Shareholder 
Cabinet Sub-Committee. In addition, the decisions made by the Shareholder Cabinet Sub-

4



Committee will be reviewed by the Audit Committee and the Scrutiny Committee for Growth, 
Environment and Resources.  
  
The “Governance of Council Companies, Partnerships and Charities” report of 4th February 2019 
set out the requirements for a Shareholder Committee and requested and gained approval of the 
Governance structure and arrangements described in section 3 of that Report for the purposes 
of formal oversight of the Council’s companies and organisations.     
 

4.3 Shareholder Cabinet Sub-Committee Purpose and Functions 
 
The Shareholder Cabinet Sub-Committee will meet four times a year, with more or less meetings 
to be arranged as necessary, with the agreement of the Chairman. The Committee will have 
responsibility for the Council’s companies, partnerships and charities including, but not limited to:  
 
(a) Peterborough Limited 
(b) Blue Sky Peterborough,  
(c) Empower Peterborough,  
(d) Opportunity Peterborough,  
(e) Peterborough Investment Partnership LLP,  
(f) Medesham Home LLP,  
(g) NPS Peterborough Ltd,  
(h) Peterborough Museum and Art Gallery, 
(i) The Mayor's Charity. and 
(j) Vivacity Culture and Leisure (“Vivacity”). 
 
The Shareholder Cabinet Sub-Committee will act as a decision making body in relation to the 
functions delegated to it as well as an advisory body to Cabinet. Support and advice will be 
provided to the Shareholder Cabinet Sub-Committee by the Monitoring Officer, the Section 151 
Officer and other client officers as appropriate.  
 
Functions of the Shareholder Cabinet Sub-Committee 
 
The Shareholder Cabinet Sub-Committee would be responsible for making decisions: 
 
a) To monitor performance and financial delivery of the companies, partnerships and charities 
set out above in line with Cabinet approved business plans by means of monthly performance 
monitoring and scrutiny;  
b) To ensure that those companies, partnerships and charities comply with relevant Council 
policies, strategies and objectives;  
c) To exercise decisions, where delegated by Cabinet, in relation to a company, partnership or 
charity’s reserved matters;  
d) To make recommendations to Cabinet in relation to investments, loans and assets; 
e) To oversee the relationships between the Council and the Council’s companies, partnerships 
and charities, and any such relationships between the Council’s companies, partnerships and 
charities in accordance with the Council’s objectives.  
f) To review any reports in relation to the Council’s companies, partnerships or charities prior to 
their submission to the Audit Committee to ensure compliance with Council policies, strategies 
and objectives; 
g) To determine for each individual company, partnership or charity whether the Shareholder 
Cabinet Committee recommends to Cabinet the delegation of any functions to the officers of the 
Council.”  
 
All other matters not falling within the remit of the Shareholder Cabinet Sub-Committee functions 
set out at a) to g) above will be referred to Cabinet for decision.  
 
Functions Reserved to Cabinet  
 
Cabinet will be responsible for the following functions in relation to the Council's companies, 
partnerships and charities:  

5



 
a) The establishment of any new company, partnership or charity;  
b) The decommissioning/winding up of existing companies, partnerships and charities; c) The 
determination of Articles of Association;  
d) The determination of the percentage share of ownership;  
e) The determination of the investment of funds or assets;  
f) The determination of any lending facilities to the Council’s companies, partnerships and 
charities;  
g) The determination of decisions reserved to the Council as shareholder or member of a 
company, partnership or charity;  
h) Scheme of delegations to the Shareholder Cabinet Committee;  
i) Approval of Business Plans;  
j) Approval of changes to service agreements in respect of KPIs, service levels and service 
standards;  
k) The setting of Policy Strategy and objectives for the operation of the Council’s companies, 
partnerships and charities.”  
 
Membership  
 
The Shareholder Cabinet Sub-Committee will comprise five Cabinet Members to be determined 
by the Leader annually. The Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Committee will also be 
appointed by the Leader on an annual basis. 3 members will be required in order for the 
Committee to be quorate. 
 
Addition to the Audit Committee Terms of Reference  
 
To consider reports in relation to the performance of the Council’s companies, alongside 
comments from the Shareholder Cabinet Committee. 
 

4.4 Council companies, partnerships, and Charities - Purposes and Accounts 
(a) Peterborough Limited 

It is the mission of Peterborough Limited to provide high quality services to the residents and 
businesses of Peterborough in an efficient, effective, flexible and innovative way for the benefit 
of everyone who lives in, works in or visits our City. 
 
Peterborough Limited aims to: 

● Improve and maintain the delivery of high quality services for residents; 
● Provide and grow commercial services that support local businesses, the proceeds of 

which will reduce the level of funding required from the Council in order to deliver services 
to residents; 

● Encourage a culture in which staff can flourish by providing support and development 
opportunities; 

● Promote “Localism” whereby 
○ businesses purchasing services from Peterborough Limited know their spend will 

make a return that is invested in the City in which they operate to the benefit of 
their employees and families 

○ employees of Peterborough Limited are incentivised to improve the quality of 
services delivered and drive business improvements that control cost, to optimise 
the return that is invested in the City in which they live 

● Offer flexible services that meet the needs of a growing, vibrant and multicultural City; 
● Deliver best value for money to the Council and its residents. 

 
Appendix B - Local Authority Trading Company LATCO Report - Cabinet - 17th December 2018 
 
Councillor Representatives: Cllr Farooq; Cllr Simons 
 
 
 

6



(b) Blue Sky Peterborough 
 
Blue Sky Peterborough Ltd was established in 2011 and is a wholly owned subsidiary of 
Peterborough City Council.  
 
Blue Sky Peterborough, an Energy Services Company (ESCo), has the mission to facilitate 
investment and development of renewable energy generation projects as well as energy 
efficiency initiatives. 
 
Blue Sky Peterborough is currently operating as a dormant company. 
Appendix C - Blue Sky Peterborough Abbreviated Accounts 1/4/2017 to 31/3/2018 
 
Councillor Representatives: Cllr Allen; Cllr Cereste 
  
 
(c) Empower Peterborough 
 
A strategic partnership between the Council and  Empower Community Management LLP,  
that’s primary purpose was to deliver the installation of solar PV on residential properties in the 
city and deliver a community benefit scheme to Peterborough making it the first scheme of its 
type in the UK and in particular, the first of its kind that involves a Council. 
 
Appendix D - Empower Peterborough CIC Accounts year ended 31/3/2018 
 
Councillor Representative: Cllr Cereste 
Officer Representative: Peter Carpenter 
 
  
(d) Opportunity Peterborough 
 
Opportunity Peterborough’s mission is to support economic growth across the city, improving 
prosperity, job opportunities, and life chances for those who live and work here. It does this by 
engaging with local companies to support growth and development, by marketing Peterborough 
to attract new businesses, by working with partners at a strategic level to create an enabling 
environment, and by playing a leading role in the city’s skills agenda to ensure the current and 
future talent pool have the skills they need to drive the city forward. 
 
Appendix E - Opportunity Peterborough Limited Annual Report and Financial Statements year 
ended 31/3/2018 
 
Councillor Representatives: Cllr Holdich; Cllr Hiller 
 
  
(e) Peterborough Investment Partnership LLP 
 
PIP was formed in January 2015, with a mandate to secure regeneration of key city centre sites. 
Its first project was to be the long-desired regeneration of Fletton Quays, formerly part of the 
wider South Bank master plans developed over the previous decades.  
 
The formation of PIP follows the great strides Peterborough has made as a city, being one of the 
fastest growing in the UK with a diverse population and diverse – and resilient – economy. This 
formation recognised that despite success in many areas some long-term aspirations (like Fletton 
Quays in the south of the city centre and North Westgate in the north) have not been realised.  
PIP was created to help spearhead delivery of key regeneration areas. 
 
Appendix F - Members & Consolidated Financial Statements Year Ended 31/3/2018 
Peterborough Investment Partnership LLP 
 
Councillor Representatives: Cllr Holdich; Cllr Hiller 

7



 
 
(f) Medesham Homes LLP  
 
The principal activity of Medesham Homes Limited Liability Partnership (LLP) is that of 
development of land and construction of "affordable" homes. The current developments are in 
relation to sites known as Midland Road, Bretton Court, Fengate Connect, Belle Vue, Tenterhill 
and London Road. 
 
The LLP has been set up as a joint venture between Peterborough City Council and CKH 
Developments Limited (the designated members) and Medesham Limited. 
 
Appendix G - Medesham Homes LLP Annual Report and Financial Statements Year Ended 
31/3/2018 
 
Councillor Representative: Cllr Hiller 
 
 
(g) NPS Peterborough Ltd 
 
NPS Peterborough Ltd is a ten year Joint Venture between the Council and NPS to deliver 
property estate and asset management services for the Council. This is an innovative joint 
venture that the Council has set up to ensure services to the residents of Peterborough and it’s 
partnerships with business and investors in the city and surrounding region are delivered 
effectively and efficiently. 
 

The joint venture between the Council and NPS is a 50/50 partnership where together we plan, 
manage, develop and enhance the Council's estate and look for opportunities to acquire and 
benefit from property based developments and initiatives.  
 
Appendix H - NPS Peterborough Ltd Annual Report and Financial Statements Year Ended 
31/3/2018 
 
Councillor Representative: Cllr Hiller 
 
 
(h) Peterborough Museum and Art Gallery 
 
Aims & Activities - Provision and maintenance of a museum and art gallery for the City of 
Peterborough and neighbourhood; for the preservation and exhibition of specimens of natural 
history, geology, archaeology, social history and the fine arts and as a centre for promoting artistic 
and general knowledge, and providing access to collections for the purpose of knowledge, 
education, research and learning. 
 
Appendix I - Peterborough Museum and Art Gallery Annual Report and Financial Statements 
Year Ended 31/3/2018  
 
Councillor Representatives: Clr Allen 
 
 
(i) The Mayor's Charities 
 
The Mayor along with a charities committee, fund raise by holding events and through the 
generosity of donations. At the end of the Mayoral year, funds are divided between the chosen 
charities and used for these in need in and around the city of Peterborough. 

For 2019-2020, The Mayor, Councillor Gul Nawaz has chosen the following three charities: 

8



● Little Miracles 
● Carers Trust Peterborough 
● Friends of Peterborough Hospitals 

(j) Vivacity 
 
Vivacity is an independent, not-for-profit organisation with charitable status. They manage many 
of Peterborough’s most popular culture and leisure facilities for both residents of the city and 
visitors to Peterborough.  
 
Vivacity provides a myriad of opportunities for people to take part in cultural and leisure 
activities. Art, heritage, learning, sport and healthy living form the mainstay of our services, with 
the specific purpose to enrich and inspire lives in partnership with various organisations and 
stakeholders. 
 
Councillor Representatives: Cllr Allen; Cllr Bashir 
 

4.5 Overview of Issues 
 
The accounts of the 9 Companies presently in scope of this committee show that:  
 

● 4 have a turnover greater than £1m 
● The combined group have fixed assets of £2.1m 
● The combined group have reserves of £2.7m 

 
The above data is taken from the latest sets of accounts available which are the 2017/18 
accounts. 
 
The Council, as part of its annual governance process allocates members and officers to various 
companies and boards.  One of the significant responsibilities of this Committee is to ensure that 
Council aims, objectives and requirements are delivered both within these Companies and also 
across these Companies. As such the Committee will: 
 

● Need to understand potential conflicts of interest between Company Board member’s 
statutory requirements and Council objectives; 

● What needs to be put in place in terms of Governance and Client Management of these 
Companies in order to ensure Council objectives are delivered.  This will involve a review 
of the role of the Client Function (which is set out in the next section and is based on the 
Peterborough Limited specification) to ensure that: 

● This is the appropriate client structure (and that there is no duplication of work); 
● There is a client function in place for each of the Companies; 
● That this function and the relationships with the Cabinet members is appropriate; 
● That the various Client functions - are connected to ensure effective use of Council 

resources.  
 

The Monitoring Officer has prepared a guidance note “Guidance for members & officers who 
serve on outside bodies” for the Committee’s approval which is attached as Appendix K. Once 
approved it shall be sent to all councillors and officers. 
  

4.6 Establishment of a “Smart” Client Team  
 
There is a requirement for an in-house client management team to act as the interface between 
the Council and the various Companies, to act in the best interests of the Council and with 
responsibility for ownership, management and delivery of a defined set of outcomes in the 
delivery of Services by the Company.  
 
These client officers will not be the same persons who sit on the Company Board. The remit of 
the Peterborough Limited client function is set out below:  
 

9



● contract and project management  
● commissioning service and negotiating and agreeing service agreements  
● setting performance levels and service standards and monitoring performance against 

standards, payments, timelines and performance levels/indicators.  
● managing changes to service delivery and performance and determining forward strategy.  
● acting as first stop forum to consider matters which are outside the Business Plan.  
● arranging and obtaining Council approvals through the Council’s internal governance 

process (Contract Rules )  
● acting in the Council’s best interests The benefits of setting up an in house client team 

are: i) Interface between the Council and Company Board ii) clear separation of client and 
provider functions ii) proper resource of client side functions to support the Company 

 
Peterborough Limited has significantly higher turnover levels than other companies and as such 
there is a formal process for the delivery of the Council client function. Due to the remit, 
transactional volumes, and existing reporting setu/requirements of other existing companies this 
client arrangement is totally replicated in other entities. 
 
It is proposed that the Council move to a clienting model for all entities that is similar to the remit 
of the Peterborough Limited model - appropriately sized for the nature of the entities business 
with named client lead. 
 
This will then ensure that regular cross client meetings can take place to ensure congruence of 
purpose across all entities.      
 

5. CONSULTATION 
 

5.1 This is the first meeting of this Committee which sets out its remit.  This remit was part of the 
LATCo cabinet paper from December 2018. 
 

6. ANTICIPATED OUTCOMES OR IMPACT 
 

6.1 The purpose of this report is to: 
 

● Set out the remit and powers of the Committee (at this inaugural meeting); 
● Set the initial baseline in terms of financial performance and purpose of the Council 

companies, partnerships and charities that the Committee has responsibility for; 
● Highlight potential conflicts of interest that members need to be aware of in order to 

manager interactions more proactively; 
● Propose areas to review in more depth in future meetings. 

 
Section 4 sets out the remit and powers of the Committee as well as the initial baselines of the 
Companies and interests it has responsibility for.  Section 4.5 in particular highlights the issues 
that the Committee will need to be aware of and overcome in order to ensure its aims and 
objectives are delivered by these organisations. 
 
It is proposed that the following three areas are looked at in more detail at the next meeting: 

● Overall Governance Arrangements; 
● Medesham Homes LLP (linkages to the delivery of Temporary Accommodation); 
● NPS peterborough Limited (linkages to the delivery of Temporary Accommodation). 

 
Following this there should be 2/3 entities looked at in detail at each meeting along with any 
Governanceor cross cutting issues that might arise.  The following schedule is suggested 
 
Meeting 2 

● Peterborough Limited 
● Empower Peterborough 
● The Mayor’s Charity 

 
Meeting 3 

10



● Opportunity Peterborough 
● Peterborough Investment Partnership LLP 

 
Meeting 4 

● Vivacity 
● Peterborough Museum and Art Gallery 
● Blue Sky Peterborough 

 
7. REASON FOR THE RECOMMENDATION 

 
7.1 This is a new Committee and this is the inaugural meeting.  The report ensures that members: 

● Understand the remit of this Committee; 
● Have a baseline of data in order to understand how these companies perform 
● Have a plan for items to discuss at future meetings (a workplan)  

 
8. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

 
8.1 This report sets out the baseline for this new committee.  This is its first meeting.  If this 

Committee did not meet, existing arrangements for the management of these organisations 
would continue.  These arrangements are not joined up as they span multiple directorates and 
Scrutiny Committees.  
 

9. IMPLICATIONS 
 

 Financial Implications 
 

9.1 Accounts for all these entities are in the appendices. 
 

 Legal Implications 
 

9.2 There are no legal implications arising from this report. 
 

 Equalities Implications 
 

9.3 There are no equalities implications arising from this report. 
 

10. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 
 

10.1 Local Authority Trading Company (LACTo) Report - Cabinet - 17th December 2018 
Governance of Council Companies, partnerships and Charities - Cabinet - 4th February 2019 
 

11. APPENDICES 
 

11.1 Appendix A - Governance Structure 
Appendix B - Local Authority Trading Company LATCO Report - Cabinet - 17th December 2018 
Appendix C - Blue Sky Peterborough Abbreviated Accounts 1/4/2017 to 31/3/2018 
Appendix D - Empower peterborough CIC Accounts year ended 31/3/2018 
Appendix E - Opportunity Peterborough Limited Annual Report and Financial Statements year 
ended 31/3/2018 
Appendix F - Members & Consolidated Financial Statements Year Ended 31/3/2018 
Peterborough Investment Partnership LLP 
Appendix G - Medesham Homes LLP Annual Report and Financial Statements Year Ended 
31/3/2018 
Appendix H - NPS Peterborough Ltd Annual Report and Financial Statements Year Ended 
31/3/2018 
Appendix I - Peterborough Museum and Art Gallery Annual Report and Financial Statements 
Year Ended 31/3/2018  
Appendix J - Vivacity Management Accounts 
Appendix K - Guidance for Member & Officers who serve on outside bodies 

 

11



This page is intentionally left blank

12



CABINET 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Audit 
Committee 

To consider reports in 
relation to the 

performance of the 
Council’s companies, 

partnerships and 
charities alongside 
comments from the 

Shareholder Cabinet 
Committee 

 

 

Overarching Shareholder Cabinet Committee (new) 

 

 

Scrutiny 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

PCC Client officer team 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Peterborough Limited  

 
 

 Blue Sky 
Peterborough 

(BSP) 

dormant, 

never traded 

 Empower 
Peterborough  

Community 
Interest 

Company 
active 

 Opportunity 
Peterborough 

active 

 Peterborough 
Investment 
Partnership 

LLP 

active 

 Medesham 
Homes LLP 

active 

 NPS 
Peterborough 

Ltd 

active 

  Peterborough 
Museum and 
Art Gallery 

not dormant, 
but not actively 

trading 

 The Mayor 
Charity 

active 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

Cabinet decisions (where Shareholder Cabinet Committee  is used)  

 
Decisions:  

 
a) Establish new companies, partnerships or charities 
b) Decommissioning or winding up of existing companies, partnerships or charities  
c) Determination of Articles of Association 
d) Determination of percentage of share ownership  
e) Determination of investment of funds or assets  
f) Determination of any lending facilities to the Council’s companies, partnerships or charities  
g) Identify reserved matters eg appoint or dismiss directors   
h) Scheme of delegations to Shareholder Cabinet Committee 

 

Shareholder Cabinet Committee - Decision Making + Advisory 

 
Membership: 5 Members of Cabinet appointed by Leader 

 
Functions:  

a)  Approve Business Plans  
b)  Monitor performance and financial delivery in line with BP 
c)  Act within powers delegated by Cabinet over reserved matters  for example. appoint/dismiss  
directors,  
d) Recommend to Cabinet re investment/loans/assets 
e) Manage interactions with PCC and other PCC organisations  
f)  To review reports in relation to the company, partnership or charity prior to submission to the 
Audit  Committee 
g) To determine for each individual company, partnership or charity whether to delegate any of its 
functions to PCC Client Officer Team 

 
Benefit: effective protection against poor performance, excessive risk, and meet Teckal 

requirements where Teckal type company is set up,  timely decision making,    
3 tier split decision making to manage PCC’s differing responsibilities as owner and a client .  
Monitors organisations’ interaction with PCC and with each other to recommend to Cabinet.  
 
Risk: decision limited to members on Shareholder Cabinet Committee  

Peterborough Limited Board 
 
Functions:  

- management and operation of the company  
- to act within the remit of the Business Plan 
- represent PCC but act in the company’s interest 
 

PCC Client officer team  
 
Functions:  

-Project management, commission services, negotiate and agree service agreements, monitor 
performance, payments, timelines, obtain approvals in line with internal governance process, 
obtain finance, HR and legal support, report to Shareholder Cabinet Committee 
-first stop forum to consider matters outside the Business Plan or matters reserved to PCC.  
- Acting in PCC’s best interest.  
 
Benefit :  

- Interface between PCC and Company, partnership or Charities  Board 
-clear separation of client and provider functions  
- proper resource of client side functions to support Company, partnership or Charity  

13

AAC536
Typewritten text
APPENDIX A



T
his page is intentionally left blank

14



CABINET AGENDA ITEM No. 4

17 DECEMBER 2018 PUBLIC REPORT

Report of: Pete Carpenter, Acting Corporate Director of Resources
Cabinet Member(s) responsible: Cllr Marco Cereste, Cabinet Member for Waste and Street 

Scene
Contact Officer(s): Pete Carpenter, Acting Corporate Director for Resources Tel.01733 

452520

Local Authority Trading Company (LATCo)

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S
FROM: Cabinet Member for Waste and Street Scene Deadline date: 7th December 

2018 
It is recommended that Cabinet:

1. Adopts the Business Plan of Peterborough Limited.

2. Approves the Governance structure and arrangements described in section 4 of this 
Report for the purposes of formal oversight of the Council’s companies and 
organisations

3. Recommends to Full Council  the changes to the Executive Delegations and agrees the 
Terms of Reference and functions of a Shareholder Cabinet Committee, and 
amendments to the Audit Committee’s Terms of Reference and the Executive 
Procedure Rules set out in Appendix B of this Report.

4. Approves the amendment of Peterborough Limited’s Articles of Association to adopt the 
list of reserved matters as set out in Appendix D.

5. Delegates to the Leader, after consultation with the Chief Executive, the appointment of 
the Council’s officer nominees to represent the Council on the Peterborough Limited 
Board.

6. Delegates to the Leader, after consultation with the Chief Executive, any future changes 
to the appointment of nominees to represent the Council on the Peterborough Limited 
Board.

7. Agrees to indemnify the Council’s nominees to the Peterborough Limited Board under the 
Local Authorities (Indemnities for Members and Officers) Order 2004.

8. Approves the terms of the suite of documents including a loan agreement, services 
agreement, support services agreement, property documentation, pension and 
employment documentation to be extended or agreed to with or in connection with 
Peterborough Limited by the Council and delegates authority to the Director of Law and 
Governance in consultation with the Director of Resources and relevant Service Director 
to make decisions and enter into legal agreements necessary to give effect to these 
arrangements.

9. Notes the budget implications of these changes as detailed in  section 9.1 of this Report, 
and that they are reflected in the Council Medium Term Financial Strategy for agreement 
in the February 2019 Cabinet meeting.

15

AAC536_1
Typewritten text
APPENDIX B



1. ORIGIN OF REPORT

1.1

1.2

1.3

The Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) 2017/18 – 2026/27, presented to Council on 8 
March 2017, included a proposal for the Council’s current contract for services with Enterprise 
Managed Services Limited (EMS) to terminate by mutual agreement and for the Council to 
consider alternative ways of providing those services. 

Cabinet decision DEC17/CAB/76 authorised the entering into a Deed of Termination relating to 
the Council’s contract for services with EMS.  That contract will currently terminate on 1 February 
2019.

Cabinet decision “Approval of future arrangements for the existing Enterprise Managed Services 
contract” KEY/11JUN18/04 approved the creation of a local authority trading company now 
named Peterborough Limited (the “Company”) to operate all services currently performed under 
the EMS contract from 2 February 2019. 

2. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT

2.1 The purpose of this report is to seek approval from Cabinet of the Company’s Business Plan and 
the efficacy of its proposed trading arrangements from 2 February 2019 and to make changes to 
the Council’s own constitutional arrangements to ensure effective oversight and contract 
management of the Company and other Council external organisations.

2.2 This report is for Cabinet to consider under its Terms of Reference No. 3.2.1, ‘To take collective 
responsibility for the delivery of all strategic Executive functions within the Council’s Major Policy 
and Budget Framework and lead the Council’s overall improvement programmes to deliver 
excellent services.’ 

2.3 There is an exempt annex attached to this report that is NOT FOR PUBLICATION by reason of 
paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of Part 1 of the Local Government Act 1972 because it contains 
commercial information. The public interest test has been applied to the information contained 
within this exempt annex and it is considered that the need to retain the information as exempt 
outweighs the public interest in disclosing it.

3. TIMESCALES

Is this a Major Policy 
Item/Statutory Plan?

NO If yes, date for 
Cabinet meeting 

17 
December 
2018

4. BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES

4.1 This report sets out:
 

● how the Company will operate in terms of:
● governance arrangements (Members and Officers);
● the services that will be delivered and how they will be measured;
● the interactions with the Council and the rules that govern this.

● how the Company will deliver those Services;
● the Council’s evaluation and view of:

● the Company’s delivery plan;
● the valuation of assets and liabilities being transferred to the Company;
● the appropriateness of the Company’s Migration and Mobilisation plans.

● how the budget is established to include for the Company for approval in Tranche 3 of the 
MTFS process;

● the detail required in items 5 and 6 of the July Cabinet Report KEY/11JUN18/04.
 

16



4.2 Governance Arrangements
 

The Council will establish a governance framework to demonstrate that it is clearly managing its 
differing responsibilities, as both an owner and separately as client of the Company. Such 
governance will demonstrate that :
 

● The Council is acting in an open and transparent manner in respect of the     Company’s 
business

● Objectives of the Council and the Company are being delivered
● Performance and risk are managed
● The extent of delegation to any directors and client officers is clear
● There is transparency around key Council decisions
● Clear separation of owner and provider functions

 
To this extent, the Council has obtained external legal advice from Bevan Brittan, which is set out 
in more detail in the legal implications section below, and has considered how a potential 
governance structure could operate to show clear and effective Council  governance and 
oversight of the Company.   The chart at Appendix C illustrates this proposed governance 
structure: the key functions of each level of the proposed governance options are :
 
A. Shareholder Cabinet Committee
A new overarching Shareholder Cabinet Committee made up of 5  members would be formed 
with decision making and advisory powers. The Shareholder Cabinet Committee will be a sub 
committee of Cabinet so it will have the power to make decisions on behalf of the Cabinet in 
relation to Peterborough Limited and the Council’s other organisations such as partnerships and 
charities. 
 
While the Cabinet would be responsible for making decisions relating to :
 

a) establishing new companies, partnerships or charities
b) decommissioning or winding up of existing companies, partnerships or charities  
c) determining the articles of association
d) determining Council’s share ownership
e) determining investments of funds or assets
f) determining any loans to the companies
g) identifying reserved matters such as to appoint or dismiss directors. 

     h)  Scheme of delegations to Shareholder Cabinet Committee
 
The Shareholder Cabinet Committee would be responsible for making decisions relating to:
a)  approving the Company’s Business Plans
b) the Company’s Performance and financial delivery against Business Plan
c) The exercise of decisions over Reserved matters where delegated by Cabinet
d) recommendations to Cabinet for investment of funds, assets or loans to the     Company.
e)review reports of the Company prior to submission to the Audit Committee 
f) managing interactions between the Council and the Company, and the Council’s other 
organisations such as partnerships and charities  
g)Delegation of functions to Council officers in a new in-house Smart client team to  increase 
commercial flexibility to act as interface with the Company.
 
The benefits of adopting the structure and responsibilities set out in Appendix C are:
 

● effective protection for the Council against potential poor performance and excessive risk, 
meeting Teckal requirements,  timely decision making,  

● 3 tier split decision making in order to reflect and manage the Council’s differing 
responsibilities as owner and a client,

● it monitors the Company’s (and other Council organisations) interaction with the Council 
and with each other to recommend to Cabinet,

● it is in accordance with Bevan Brittan’s advice
 

17



While there is a risk that under this structure decision making is limited to members on the 
Shareholder Cabinet Committee, this can be mitigated by requiring key decisions relating to share 
ownership, financial investments and reserved matters to be approved only by Cabinet. The 
Council’s Monitoring Officer and Section 151 Officer will provide support to the Shareholder 
Cabinet Committee. In addition, the decisions made by the Shareholder Cabinet Committee will 
be reviewed by the Audit Committee and the Scrutiny Committee for Growth, Environment and 
Resources.

B. Company Board
Council appointed Company directors will be responsible for:
 

● Acting in the statutory role of  a company director with fiduciary duties to the Company, 
acting in the best interest of the Company

● Operational control of the company
● Developing and delivering the Business Plan to the Council
● Regular reporting on progress of the Business Plan to the Council

 
In order to avoid conflicts of interests and accusations of predetermination and bias as highlighted 
in Bevan Brittan’s advice it is recommended that Board Directors should not be officers holding 
direct responsibility for matters on which the Council needs to retain unfettered decision making 
ability. In accordance with Bevan Brittan’s advice, any Council officer appointed to the Company 
Board will not be officers who also hold responsibility for statutory or executive duties in the 
Council.
  
C. Audit Committee
It is proposed that the existing Audit Committee will review the financial activity on a quarterly 
basis of all Council companies including the Company.  The Audit Committee terms of reference 
need to be adjusted slightly for this but overall the Committee has powers to require Cabinet to 
make changes and their remit is the financial health of the Council and ensuring all risk is 
appropriately managed.  Further details are set out in Appendix C.
 
D. Establishment of a “Smart” Client Team
There is a requirement for the in-house client management team to act as the interface between 
the Council and the Company, to act in the best interests of the Council and with responsibility 
for ownership, management and delivery of a defined set of outcomes in the delivery of Services 
by the Company. These client officers will not be the same persons who sit on the Company 
Board. 

 
The client officers will be responsible for:

 
● contract and project management
● commissioning service and negotiating and agreeing service agreements
● setting performance levels and service standards and monitoring performance against 

standards, payments, timelines and performance levels/indicators.
● managing changes to service delivery and performance and determining forward strategy.
● acting as first stop forum to consider matters which are outside the Business Plan.
● arranging and obtaining Council approvals through the Council’s internal governance 

process (Contract Rules )
● acting in the Council’s best interests 

The benefits of setting up an in house client team are:

i) Interface between the Council and Company Board
ii) clear separation of client and provider functions
ii) proper resource of client side functions to support the Company
 

18



E. Scrutiny
The Audit Committee, and Growth, Environment and Resources Scrutiny Committee will 
scrutinise the decision making of the Shareholder Cabinet Committee, and the performance of 
the Company  in delivering the outputs of the Services Agreement. 

Appointment of Director to the Company’s Board
If Cabinet approves the recommendations set out above it is proposed the Council will need to 
appoint two non-executive members to the Board of Peterborough Limited.

4.3 The Services that will be delivered and how they will be measured
 
Services Included

○ Waste Collection
● Presently an alternate weekly collection system is in place for residual waste one week 
and mixed recyclables the following week with a weekly food waste collection across most of 
the Authority’s area.  Separately residents can opt into a paid for garden waste collection 
service, collected the same week as the recycling bin.

 
○ Street Cleansing
● A change from the original ‘output specification’ was developed as part of the requirement 
to reduce costs whereby areas are cleansed on a set frequency based on the intensity of 
usage.  Increasing the area covered by ‘low use’ reduced the frequency and therefore 
intensity of the cleaning regime to cut costs.  Ad hoc crews are available to cover service 
requests, graffiti and street washing and tackle fly tipping removal alongside scheduled 
cleaning visits.

 
○ Buildings Maintenance
● A multidisciplinary service which includes repair and upkeep of electrical, heating, air 
conditioning, gas, fire and intruder alarms as well as structural repairs and maintenance.  The 
service also provides for the development and delivery of building extensions and new build 
for the Council across its services. A number of specialist providers are secured through this 
arrangement, e.g. lifting equipment.

 
○ Building Cleaning
● This service provide cleaning of Council buildings, including formal Council spaces like 
Council Chamber in Town Hall and office spaces like Sand Martin House, as well as other 
Council properties like multi storey car parks.  Provision is also made for specialist service 
like window cleaning, deep carpet cleaning, pest control and toilet/kitchen cleaning, bin 
emptying etc.

 
○ Grounds Maintenance
● Includes grass cutting, shrub and planted bed maintenance, hanging baskets, cleaning of 
litter from planted areas, tree maintenance and planting. This service area covers general 
grassed areas, sports pitches, as well as formal parks including Central Park.

 
○ In-House Schools Transport
● Provision of buses for home to school transport, including Special Educational Needs 
(SEN) with additional staff to cater for service users specific needs.

 
Specification

○ Appendix E sets out the present specifications
 

PI/KPI Arrangements and Levers
○ Definition of what will be used

● See ‘KPI’s June 2018.xlsx’
○ Definition on how this affects/controls delivery

19



4.4 The interactions with the Council and the rules that govern this
 
The Council expects the Company to operate using the following arrangements:
 
Roles and Responsibilities

● The Council shall provide the policy framework and strategic direction for the delivery of 
the Services within the Service Specifications. The Company shall work towards delivering 
against the Service Specification and Services Agreement. These will be updated on a 
yearly basis.

Appendix F sets out these arrangements for Legal Services, Human Resources & Payroll, 
and Finance.  This includes the important information relating to the formation of the:
● Services Agreement
● Loan Agreement
● Property Agreements

as well as setting out how Peterborough Limited interacts with the Council and the standards 
expected by the Council. 

4.5 The Company’s Proposal

Peterborough Limited has delivered its detailed proposal for the delivery of the Services set out 
in Section 4.3 from the 2nd February 2019.  The proposal included the following documentation:

● Business Plan 2019-2024 (Appendix A); 
● Appendices to the Business Plan (Appendix A)including

○ 5 Year Financial forecasts;
○ Draft Mobilisation Plan;
○ Financial Regulations and Procedures;
○ Procurement Strategy and Contract Procurement Rules;
○ Draft Performance Indicators; and
○ PESTLE and SWOT analysis .

In addition, to assist the Council’s evaluation of the proposal, further detailed financial and asset 
information was supplied.

The Business Plan and the supporting documentation is attached in the exempt annex to this 
report.

The Business Plan sets out how Peterborough Limited will deliver these services from the 2nd 
February 2019.  The July Cabinet Report set out the reasons why the Teckal route had been 
taken by the Council for the delivery of these Services.

The Business Plan includes the Mission Statement, Vision and Values of Peterborough Limited. 

Mission Statement
It is the mission of Peterborough Limited to provide high quality services to the residents and 
businesses of Peterborough in an efficient, effective, flexible and innovative way for the benefit 
of everyone who lives in, works in or visits our City.

Peterborough Limited aims to:
● Improve and maintain the delivery of high quality services for residents;
● Provide and grow commercial services that support local businesses, the proceeds of 

which will reduce the level of funding required from the Council in order to deliver services 
to residents;

● Encourage a culture where staff can flourish by providing support and development 
opportunities;

20



● Promote “Localism” whereby businesses purchasing services from Peterborough Limited 
know their spend will make a return that is invested in the City in which they operate, to 
the benefit of their employees and families.  This will incentivise employees of 
Peterborough Limited to improve the quality of services delivered and drive business 
improvements that control cost in order to optimise the return that is invested in the City 
in which they live;

● Offer flexible services that meet the needs of a growing, vibrant and multi-cultural City;
● Deliver best value for money to the Council and its residents.

Vision Statement
Peterborough Limited’s vision is to support the aims of the Council in delivering high quality 
sustainable services in a socially responsible and environmentally friendly way.  At the same time, 
it will maximise commercial opportunities that will provide funding for the Company, meaning 
reduced reliance on taxpayers’ funding that would in turn protect other valuable Council services.
 
Peterborough Limited will deliver the market opportunities through a Strategic Plan with 4 Phases:

● Phase 1 - Mobilisation and Stabilisation of the current offer up to 90 days after the 1st 
February “Go Live” date;

● Phase 2 - “Public Service Improvement” to February 2020 where Peterborough Limited 
will engage with Stakeholders to identify needs and improvements required to the service; 

● Phase 3 - Profitable Revenue Growth from Existing Offers which will run in parallel to 
Phase 2 which will major on the themes of differentiation and localism; and,

● Phase 4 - Commercial Growth from New Business Activities which will start after 2 years.

The financial and resourcing requirements of Peterborough Limited and procedures required to 
deliver the present services are set out in the final sections.  Overall, the following funding is 
required from the Council over the initial 5 years of operation:

● 2019/20 - £10,462,111;
● 2020/21 - £10,543,450;
● 2021/22 - £10,678,415;
● 2022/23 - £10,817,080;
● 2023/24  - £11,009.517.

These budgets will need to be included in the Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan.  In addition, 
Peterborough Limited has plans in place to start to grow commercial income with the creation of 
a commercial budget to deliver these plans. 

Present risks and how they are being mitigated are also included in the Business Plan.

4.6 The Council Assessment of the Company’s Proposal

An updated Business Case was provided for evaluation on the 22nd November.  This included:
● The Business Plan 2019-23
● Appendices that set out:

○ Operating Budgets for 2019/20 through to 2023/24
○ A high level mobilisation Plan
○ Financial Regulations
○ A Procurement Strategy and Contract Procurement Rules

● Draft Performance Indicators
● A SWOT and PESTLE Analysis

In addition to this, and in order to undertake a full due diligence process, the Company also 
provided: 

● Detailed Payroll detail
● Detailed analysis of vehicle costs and other assets to be transferred from Amey to 

Peterborough Limited

21



A full analysis of the Due Diligence is contained in exempt Appendix G

Business Plan -  This analysis focuses on the present and the transfer of the Amey Services.  
There is a strategy in place to deal with this although, as is set out in the “Go Live” Section, 
there is also a requirement to see the detail and movement on key items. 

From a financial viewpoint the numbers contained in the Operating Forecasts can be validated 
with a high degree of confidence around the significant inputs of staffing, vehicle & plant and 
external income for 2019/20. The purchase of the Refuse vehicle is budgeted in year 1 which 
could lead to capacity in years 2 and 3. There is still the requirement for a cash flow statement 
to ensure that the Loan amount will cover operational requirements.

It should be noted however that the delivery of the Services by Peterborough Limited will be an 
additional cost to the Council as the base budget is lower than both what is being paid to Amey 
at the moment for which additional budget has been agreed, and the proposed budget of 
Peterborough Limited.  This is summarised in the table in Section 9.1.

Peterborough Limited has revised its Mobilisation Plan following a series of meetings and 
information exchanges with Amey on the 4th and 5th December.  The main headings of this 
plan are:

● Executive Functions
● ICT
● Human Resources
● Operations
● Health and Safety

There will be significant movement on this in terms of risks as data transfer and agreements are 
still to be reached in a limited timescale with Amey.  This will lead to a number of work-streams 
working in parallel which the requirement of input from both the Council and Amey over the next 
7 weeks.

The Cabinet will be updated on the 17th December on progress against these timescales and 
the risks to the 2nd February “Go Live” date. 

5. CONSULTATION

5.1 The Council continues to undertake consultation with relevant stakeholders including: trade 
unions, affected EMS staff, Cabinet Members and the Corporate Management Team.

6. ANTICIPATED OUTCOMES OR IMPACT

6.1 The anticipated outcome is one that allows a smooth transfer of services upon termination of the 
EMS/Amey contract which would provide better value and control than previously considered.

7. REASON FOR THE RECOMMENDATION

7.1 There is a requirement for the Council to carry out the services presently provided by Amey.  The 
Amey contract currently terminates on the 1st February 2019 and at the moment the Council has 
agreed to transfer operation of these Services on the 2nd February 2019 to Peterborough Limited 
to ensure continuity of service to its stakeholders and customers.

22



8. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED

8.1 The alternative options available to the Council have previously been considered by Cabinet and 
are included in Cabinet Reports DEC17/CAB/76 and KEY/11JUN18/04.

9. IMPLICATIONS

Financial Implications

9.1 Sections 4.5 and 4.6 seat out the Company proposals for the delivery of services and the 
Council’s Due Diligence of those Proposals. 

The table below sets out the requirements Peterborough Limited over the MTFS period and 
compared to the budget presently in the MTFS.   As such - additional budget will be required.

Year 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

Base Budget £9,594,231 £9,737,589 £9,737,589

Requirement £10,462,111 £10,543,450 £10,678,415

Additional Budget £867,880 £805,861 £940,826
 

Legal Implications

9.2.1

9.2.2

9.2.3

The Council has previously received legal advice regarding the creation of a Local Authority 
Company.  This advice has been detailed in KEY/11JUN18/04 and as a result of this advice the 
Company is “Teckal” compliant in order to gain the “Teckal” exemption from needing to compete 
with other companies under procurement legislation, but is likely to be a contracting authority 
meaning that it should procure under EU rules.

In KEY/11JUN18/04 the Council confirmed that it would continue to obtain ongoing internal and 
external legal advice as necessary in relation to the Business Case supporting the creation of the 
Company and to ensure that the Company remains state aid and procurement compliant.

Since KEY/11JUN18/04  the Council has obtained external legal advice from Bevan Brittan on 
the best way to achieve an appropriate and effective governance framework.  Key points from 
Bevan Brittan’s advice are set out below :

“The Council needs to ensure that the governance framework is clear and that roles and 
responsibilities do not conflict.  Conflicts could amount to a breach of statutory duty and/or result 
in legal challenge.  Where conflicts cannot be avoided then they need to be properly managed.
 
In summary, the Council should look at how members and officers are involved in creating and 
managing the Company arrangements holistically:

 
Strategic decisions about the Council's involvement in the Company (for example, deciding 
which functions will be undertaken through the Company, how they will be provided and to what 
standards, approving the annual business plan and the strategy and direction of the Company 
and the funding, resourcing and other parameters of its operations, including monitoring of 
financial returns etc.)
 
Ownership – appointment of a shareholder representative to deal with shareholder consent 
requirements, such as the reserved matters set out in the Phase 1 Legal Advice (i.e. 'parent' 
approval of any transactions of a significant scale and matters outside of the agreed business 
plan).
 

23



Board representation – the Council will appoint the directors through its existing protocol at 
section at Part 3 Section 5 of the Constitution.  The directors' role is primarily to promote the 
success of the Company.  As this could bring a director into conflict with Council plans, policies 
and decision-making, directors should not be involved in taking decisions for the Council about 
the company when they are acting "Council-side".  If they did so, then this could raise the 
perception of bias.  Whilst this may not be a direct breach of the Council's "light touch" Members' 
Code of Conduct, such behaviour may nevertheless be inconsistent with the Principles of Public 
Life.
 
Planning and regulatory functions – the Council needs to ensure that decisions regarding the 
Company are not 'polluted' by the perception of bias and so Company directors must not 
participate in Council decisions relating to funding, permissions, licences, registrations and 
consents. 
 
Commissioning as a recipient of services/ monitoring – ensuring that service specifications 
are clear and standards of service delivery and performance are received (for example, 
determining whether KPIs and other performance standards are met and what will be done to 
address problems in service delivery, ensuring that effective monitoring is undertaken and that 
the Council and the Company are on track for success).

Members therefore need to decide which interests they wish to pursue i.e. the company's 
interests as a Director and service provider; or the Council side as owner and/or manager of the 
Council's interests in the company, or potentially any planning and regulatory issues.  It is not 
possible for one person to represent all of the interests set out above and failure to properly 
consider those interests could mean that the decisions of the Council are challenged which could 
cause expense and reputational damage for the Council and the companies concerned.

 
Elected members acting as directors would not have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (unless the 
company were to pay remuneration - which would need to be no higher than members' 
allowances and be accounted for in connection with the Council's scheme for members' 
allowances and offset).”

As a result of the Bevan Brittan advice, the Council has developed the Governance framework 
set out above, to regulate its relationship with the Company and other external organisations in 
which it has an interest.

Equalities Implications

9.3 There are no negative equalities implications.

Property Implications

9.5 The Council will enter into various licence and lease arrangements with the Company prior to 2 
February 2019 in order to allow the Company to operate from Council premises.

HR Implications
9.6

● Currently the Council structure has a client side function, fulfilled by 2 posts, for the 
management of the current contracted service.  

● It is essential that the account management governance structure is maintained which is 
supported by external legal advice. his function will remain in place, within the Council 
thereby giving no rise to TUPE regulations 

● The initial mobilisation plan will require the Company to have in place a role that provides 
detailed knowledge of operational service issues from a Council delivery perspective and 
contribute to the success of the mobilisation plan.   

● With this in mind, the current Head of Environmental Services Partnerships (the Council’s 
team) has the depth of knowledge and experience required to support the mobilisation 
and therefore, an option is that the post holder undertakes a 6 month secondment to the 
Company to support this.  

24



● If agreed, a secondment agreement will be created to protect all parties concerned. 
● Appropriate steps will be taken to ensure that the Council is adequately resourced by 

backfilling as appropriate.

10. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) 
Act 1985

10.1 Cabinet Decision - KEY/11JUN18/04

11. APPENDICES

11.1 Appendix A - Peterborough Limited Business Plan (4.5) and
Peterborough Limited Appendices A1, A2 and A3 (4.5)
Appendix B - Governance terms of reference (4.2)
Appendix C - Governance structure chart
Appendix D - Reserved Matters (4.4.1)
Appendix E - Service Specifications (4.3)
Appendix F - The Interactions with the Council and the rules that Govern this
Appendix G - Council Assessment of the Company’s Proposal

Appendices A and G are included in the exempt annex to this report.

25



This page is intentionally left blank

26



Registered Number 
7781846 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Blue Sky Peterborough Limited 
 

Abbreviated Accounts 
 

From 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

27

AAC536_2
Typewritten text
APPENDIX C



 
Blue Sky Peterborough Limited 
Abbreviated Balance Sheet 
As at 31st March 2018 
 
 
     Notes   2017 2017 2018 2018 
 
Non-current assets      £ £ £ £  
Intangible assets      0.00  0.00   
Tangible assets      0.00  0.00  
Investments       0.00  0.00 
        0.00  0.00 
 
Current assets 
Stocks        0.00  0.00 
Debtors       1.00  1.00 
Investments held as assets     0.00  0.00 
Cash at bank and in hand     0.00  0.00 
        1.00  1.00 
 
 
Total assets        1.00  1.00 
 
Equity         
£1.00 ordinary shares      1.00  1.00 
Retained earnings      0.00  0.00 
        1.00  1.00 
 
Non-Current liabilities 
Loan capital       0.00  0.00 
Current liabilities 
Trade payables      0.00  0.00 
Taxation       0.00  0.00 
 
 
Total Equity and Liabilities      1.00  1.00 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

28



 
 
The directors are satisfied that for the period 01 April 2017 to 31 March 2018 the Company was 
entitled to exemption from audit under section 480 of the Companies Act 2006 relating to dormant 
companies and that no member or members have requested an audit pursuant to section s476 of 
the Companies Act 2006 
 
The directors acknowledge their responsibilities for: 

(i) ensuring that the company keeps proper accounting records which comply with s386 
of the Companies Act 2006 

(ii) preparing accounts which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 
company as at the end of the financial year and of its profit or loss for the financial 
year in accordance with the requirements of section 394 to 396 of the Companies Act 
2006 and which otherwise comply with the requirements of this Act relating to 
accounts, so far as applicable to the Company. 

 
The accounts have been prepared in accordance with the special provision of the Companies Act 
relating to small companies. 
 
 

 
 
Peter Carpenter 
Managing Director 
Approved by the board on 12th December 2018 

29



This page is intentionally left blank

30



31

AAC536_3
Typewritten text
APPENDIX D



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



This page is intentionally left blank

42



43

AAC536_4
Typewritten text
APPENDIX E



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



This page is intentionally left blank

64



65

AAC536_5
Typewritten text
APPENDIX F



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



This page is intentionally left blank

100



101

AAC536_6
Typewritten text
APPENDIX G



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



This page is intentionally left blank

122



123

AAC536_7
Typewritten text
APPENDIX H



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



This page is intentionally left blank

150



Charity Registration No. 311798

PETERBOROUGH MUSEUM AND ART GALLERY

ANNUAL REPORT AND UNAUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

151

AAC536_8
Typewritten text
APPENDIX I



PETERBOROUGH MUSEUM AND ART GALLERY

LEGAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE INFORMATION

Corporate Trustee Peterborough City Council

Charity number 311798

Principal address Priestgate

Peterborough

Accountants Baldwins Holdings Limited t/a Rawlinsons

Ruthlyn House

90 Lincoln Road

Peterborough

Cambridgeshire

PE1 2SP

Bankers Barclays Bank PLC

Peterborough Business Centre

PO Box 294

1 Church Street

Peterborough

Cambridgeshire

PE1 1EZ

152



PETERBOROUGH MUSEUM AND ART GALLERY

CONTENTS

Page

Trustee report 1 - 3

Statement of trustee responsibilities 4

Accountants' report 5

Statement of financial activities 6

Balance sheet 7

Notes to the financial statements 8 - 11

153



PETERBOROUGH MUSEUM AND ART GALLERY

TRUSTEE REPORT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

The corporate trustee present their report and financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018.

The accounts have been prepared in accordance with the accounting policies set out in note 1 to the accounts 
and comply with the charity’s Deed of Trust, applicable law and the requirements of the Statement of
Recommended Practice, "Accounting and Reporting by Charities" revised in March 2005.

Objectives and activities

The Museum is based in an early nineteenth century classical style building within easy walking distance of 
the Cathedral and the city centre shops. 

The corporate trustee have paid due regard to guidance issued by the Charity Commission in deciding what 
activities the museum should undertake.

The operational management of the Museum and Art Gallery is contracted to Vivacity Culture and Leisure 
(registered charity number 1138230) by Peterborough City Council. 

The financial year 2017/2018 saw another busy and successful year including delivery of the following major
projects:

� Conclusion of the Heritage Lottery Fund grant funded project where the museum has partnered with 
the archives service to deliver a WW1 project. The project included research into the servicemen who
signed the visitor's books at www.peterboroughww1.co.uk with descendants of the servicemen being 
traced. This concludes with an exhibition 'The Soldiers and Sailors Rest', commemorate World War 1 
opened in Peterborough Museum featuring the World War One guestbooks from Peterborough East 
Station.

� We were successful in gaining funding from the Heritage Lottery Fund and the Garfield Weston Loan 
Fund to support the Treasures exhibition opening in August 2018. The exhibition is part of city-wide
programme of events to mark Peterborough 900 in 2018. Preliminary work has been successful in 
gaining loans in principle from National Museums including the British Museum and Victoria and 
Albert Museum.

� The Turner painting 'Peterborough from the North' from the museum's permanent collection started its 
year-long loan on tour to four venues in Japan, starting at Kitakyusyu. It is part of the largest Turner 
exhibition in Japan, which has been organised in partnership with the National Galleries of Scotland, 
and has loans from over 20 museums and organisation from the UK. The painting will be returned 
September 2018. This is the first time in recent history that the museum has organised an 
international loan.

� The delivery of the timeline project strand of our Museums and School partnership with Natural
History Museum. All local heritage interest groups have been contacted with the opportunity to supply 
content for the website. The website will also contain a subscription area for schools, providing 
exclusive teaching and learning materials in the shape of a ground-breaking new place based 
curriculum. The site will go live to the public in 2018, to coincide with Peterborough 900. We have 
received confirmation from Arts Council England that we will receive a further two years of Museums 
and Schools funding. This will enable the heritage team to continue to work with the Natural History
Museum to develop our schools programme.

154



PETERBOROUGH MUSEUM AND ART GALLERY

TRUSTEE REPORT (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

Programming for the public during this financial year saw successful exhibitions across a range of topics, 
including an in-house exhibitions 'Toys - an exhibition looking at toys and play across the generations focused 
on objects from our permanent collections, and ‘Must Farm' - an exhibition showcasing the unique Bronze age 
finds from Must Farm working in partnership with Cambridge Archaeology Unit, including wooden boats 
currently being conserved at Flag Fen.

The Museum events programme saw particular success with family activities. The annual Katharine of Aragon 
Festival took place in January, and marked the first of the city's events for the 'Peterborough Celebrates' 
campaign in 2018. Vivacity events included a lecture, family day at the Museum and themed walks, all of 
which were well attended. Half terms covered themes of 'Give us a Clue' based on Cluedo linking to our 'Toys' 
exhibition. Traditional skills workshops were again held at Peterborough Museum building on last years 
success working particularly well around the Christmas period, but also including collections based workshops 
supporting the Must Farm exhibition. Over 11,000 visitors participated in events over the year. The Heritage 
Festival Big Weekend again attracted over 28,000 visitors with the main theme being the English Civil War.

The education programme has developed new sessions for KS2-3 on Crime and Punishment, and KS2 'Play 
and Pastimes' to accompany the Toys exhibition. New teachers resource packs have been produced as part 
of the HLF WW1 project..

The Finds liaison officer for Cambridgeshire continues to be based at Peterborough one day a week. This role 
is part of the portable antiquities scheme a DCMS funded project to encourage the voluntary recording of 
archaeological objects found by members of the public in England and Wales. Finds processed at 
Peterborough included an important bronze gold torc, purchased by Ely Museum through the treasure act.

The Museum and Art Gallery continues to play an important and vital role in the City’s rich heritage and 
complements and engages with the City’s many other heritage venues, events and projects. 

Achievements and performance

Financial review

The unrestricted funds which have not been designated for a specific use relate to the revaluation of the Flag 
Fen site. The corporate trustee considers that reserves at this level will ensure that they will be able to 
continue the museum’s current activities.

The corporate trustee has assessed the major risks to which the museum is exposed, and are satisfied that 
systems are in place to mitigate exposure to the major risks.

Structure, governance and management

The Museum was founded by a Deed of Trust dated 1 February 1935 and a Scheme was made by the 
Secretary of State for Education and Science on the 29 February 1968. It is registered with the Charity 
Commission, number 311798 and its address is Priestgate, Peterborough. The constitution states that the 
charity trustees are the Mayor, Councillors and Citizens of the City of Peterborough. For all practical 
purchases the approach taken is to define this as Peterborough City Council act as the charity's sole 
corporate trustee.

The object of the charity is the provision and maintenance of a Museum and Art Gallery for the City of 
Peterborough and neighbourhood; for the preservation and exhibition of specimens of natural history, geology, 
archaeology, social history and the fine arts and as a centre for promoting artistic and general knowledge, and 
providing access to collections for the purpose of knowledge, education, research and learning. In 
considering, reviewing and planning our future objectives, aims and activities of the charity, we have referred 
to the guidance contained in the Charity Commission's general guidance on public benefit and the trustees 
have considered how they will contribute to the aims and objectives they have set. 

The corporate trustee who served during the year were:

Peterborough City Council

155



PETERBOROUGH MUSEUM AND ART GALLERY

TRUSTEE REPORT (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

None of the corporate trustee has any beneficial interest in the company. All of the corporate trustee are 
members of the company and guarantee to contribute £1 in the event of a winding up.

On behalf of the board of corporate trustee 

Councillor S Allen

Trustee

Dated: 25 July 2018

156



PETERBOROUGH MUSEUM AND ART GALLERY

STATEMENT OF TRUSTEE RESPONSIBILITIES  

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

The corporate trustee are responsible for preparing the Trustee Report and the accounts in accordance with 
applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice).

The law applicable to charities in England and Wales requires the corporate trustee to prepare accounts for 
each financial year which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the museum and of the incoming 
resources and application of resources of the museum for that year.

In preparing these accounts, the corporate trustee are required to:

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

- observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP;

- make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

- state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures 
disclosed and explained in the accounts; and

- prepare the accounts on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the charity will 
continue in operation.

The corporate trustee are responsible for keeping sufficient accounting records that disclose with reasonable 
accuracy at any time the financial position of the museum and enable them to ensure that the accounts comply 
with the Charities Act 2011, the Charity (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 and the provisions of the trust 
deed. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charity and hence for taking reasonable 
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

157



PETERBOROUGH MUSEUM AND ART GALLERY

ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT TO THE CORPORATE TRUSTEE ON THE PREPARATION 

OF THE UNAUDITED STATUTORY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PETERBOROUGH 

MUSEUM AND ART GALLERY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

In order to assist you to fulfil your duties under the Charities Act 2011, we have prepared for your approval the 
financial statements of Peterborough Museum and Art Gallery for the year ended 31 March 2018, which 
comprise the Statement of Financial Activities and the related notes from the charity’s accounting records and 
from information and explanations you have given us.

This report is made to the charity's trustees as a body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter 
dated 18 April 2018. Our work has been undertaken solely to prepare for your approval the accounts of 
Peterborough Museum and Art Gallery and state those matters that we have agreed to state to the charity's 
trustees, as a body, in this report. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume 
responsibility to anyone other than Peterborough Museum and Art Gallery and the charity's corporate trustee as 
a body, for our work or for this report.

It is your duty to ensure that Peterborough Museum and Art Gallery has kept adequate accounting records and 
to prepare statutory financial statements that give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position 
and deficit of Peterborough Museum and Art Gallery. You consider that Peterborough Museum and Art Gallery is 
exempt from the statutory audit requirement for the year, and is not required to obtain an independent 
examiner's report.

We have not been instructed to carry out an audit or a review of the financial statements of Peterborough 
Museum and Art Gallery. For this reason, we have not verified the accuracy or completeness of the accounting 
records or information and explanations you have given to us and we do not, therefore, express any opinion on 
the statutory financial statements.

Rawlinsons 27 July 2018

Accountants Ruthlyn House

90 Lincoln Road

Peterborough

Cambridgeshire

PE1 2SP

158



PETERBOROUGH MUSEUM AND ART GALLERY

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES 
INCLUDING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

2018 2017

Notes £ £

Expenditure on:

Charitable activities 3 12,758 12,758

Net expenditure for the year/

Net movement in funds (12,758) (12,758)

Fund balances at 1 April 2017 422,013 434,771

Fund balances at 31 March 2018 409,255 422,013

The statement of financial activities includes all gains and losses recognised in the year.

All income and expenditure derive from continuing activities.

159



PETERBOROUGH MUSEUM AND ART GALLERY

BALANCE SHEET 

AS AT 31 MARCH 2018

2018 2017

Notes £ £ £ £

Fixed assets

Tangible assets 6 409,255 422,013

Income funds

Unrestricted funds 409,255 422,013

The accounts were approved by the Corporate Trustee on 25 July 2018

Councillor S Allen

Trustee

160



PETERBOROUGH MUSEUM AND ART GALLERY

NOTES TO THE  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

1 Accounting policies

Charity information

Peterborough Museum and Art Gallery is a foundation to provide a museum and art gallery for the City of 
Peterborough and neighbourhood..

1.1 Accounting convention

The accounts have been prepared in accordance with the museum's constitution,  the Charities Act 2011 
and “Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities 
preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and 
Republic of Ireland (FRS 102)” (as amended for accounting periods commencing from 1 January 2016). 
The museum is a Public Benefit Entity as defined by FRS 102.

The museum has taken advantage of the provisions in the SORP for charities applying FRS 102 Update
Bulletin 1 not to prepare a Statement of Cash Flows.

The financial statements have departed from the Charities (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 only 
to the extent required to provide a true and fair view. This departure has involved following the Statement 
of Recommended Practice for charities applying FRS 102 rather than the version of the Statement of 
Recommended Practice which is referred to in the Regulations but which has since been withdrawn.

The financial statements are prepared in sterling, which is the functional currency of the museum. 
Monetary amounts in these financial statements are rounded to the nearest £.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, modified to include the 
revaluation of freehold properties and to include investment properties and certain financial instruments at 
fair value. The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below.

1.2 Going concern

At the time of approving the financial statements, the corporate trustee have a reasonable expectation that 
the museum has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Thus 
the corporate trustee continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial 
statements.

1.3 Charitable funds

Unrestricted funds are available for use at the discretion of the corporate trustee in furtherance of their 
charitable objectives unless the funds have been designated for other purposes.

Restricted funds are funds subject to specific restriction imposed by the donors or by the purpose of the 
appeal.

Endowment funds are subject to specific conditions by donors that the capital must be maintained by the 
museum.

1.4 Incoming resources

Income is recognised when the museum is legally entitled to it after any performance conditions have been 
met, the amounts can be measured reliably, and it is probable that income will be received.

Cash donations are recognised on receipt. Other donations are recognised once the museum has been 
notified of the donation, unless performance conditions require deferral of the amount. Income tax 
recoverable in relation to donations received under Gift Aid or deeds of covenant is recognised at the time 
of the donation.

161



PETERBOROUGH MUSEUM AND ART GALLERY

NOTES TO THE  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

1 Accounting policies (Continued)

 -

Legacies are recognised on receipt or otherwise if the museum has been notified of an impending 
distribution, the amount is known, and receipt is expected. If the amount is not known, the legacy is treated 
as a contingent asset.

Turnover is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents amounts 
receivable for goods and services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts, VAT and 
other sales related taxes.

1.5 Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at cost or valuation, net of 
depreciation and any impairment losses.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets less their residual values over 
their useful lives on the following bases:

Land and buildings Over 35 years

The gain or loss arising on the disposal of an asset is determined as the difference between the sale 
proceeds and the carrying value of the asset, and is recognised in net income/(expenditure) for the year.

1.6 Impairment of fixed assets

At each reporting end date, the museum reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine 
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication 
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment 
loss (if any).

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for 
impairment annually, and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

1.7 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term liquid 
investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are 
shown within borrowings in current liabilities.

Basic financial assets

Basic financial assets, which include debtors and cash and bank balances, are initially measured at 
transaction price including transaction costs and are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the 
effective interest method unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the transaction 
is measured at the present value of the future receipts discounted at a market rate of interest. Financial 
assets classified as receivable within one year are not amortised.

162



PETERBOROUGH MUSEUM AND ART GALLERY

NOTES TO THE  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

1 Accounting policies (Continued)

Basic financial liabilities

Basic financial liabilities, including creditors and bank loans are initially recognised at transaction price 
unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the debt instrument is measured at the 
present value of the future payments discounted at a market rate of interest. Financial liabilities classified 
as payable within one year are not amortised.

Debt instruments are subsequently carried at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method.

Trade creditors are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course 
of operations from suppliers. Amounts payable are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within 
one year or less. If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities. Trade creditors are recognised initially 
at transaction price and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the museum’s contractual obligations expire or are discharged 
or cancelled.

1.8 Notional Costs

In previous years a notional cost of capital, which matched that calculated in the accounts of Peterborough 
City Council in accordance with the Treasury Guidance, had been disclosed on the face of the Statement 
of Financial Activities. This notional cost had no financial impact on the performance of the charity and is 
no longer considered relevant for disclosure therefore, on this basis, has been excluded from these 
accounts.

There is no financial adjustment necessary to the current or previous years accounts as a result of this 
change of policy.

1.9 Heritage assets

The museum has various collections of heritage assets which are held in support of the museum's primary 
objective of increasing knowledge, understanding and appreciation of the Peterborough area. 

The trustees do not consider that reliable cost or valuation information can be obtained for the vast majority 
of items held in the collections. This is because of the diverse nature of the assets held, the number of 
assets held and the lack of comparable market values. The trustees consider that obtaining valuations for 
the majority of the collections would involve disproportionate cost. The museum does not therefore 
recognise these assets on its balance sheet. The insurance valuation for the collections is £6,307,378 
(2017 - £6,183,704). The Flag Fen exhibits have a declared value of £85,265 (2017 - £83,594) with an 
insured sum of £98,055 (2017 - £96,133).

2 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

In the application of the museum’s accounting policies, the corporate trustee are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that are not 
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical 
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these 
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised where the revision affects only that 
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods where the revision affects both current and future 
periods.

163



PETERBOROUGH MUSEUM AND ART GALLERY

NOTES TO THE  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

3 Charitable activities

2018 2017

£ £

Depreciation and impairment 12,758 12,758

4 Corporate Trustee

The trustees neither received nor waived any emoluments during the year.  No expenses were reimbursed 
to trustees.

5 Employees

There were no employees during the year.

6 Tangible fixed assets

Land and buildings

£

Cost

At 1 April 2017 496,435

At 31 March 2018 496,435

Depreciation and impairment

At 1 April 2017 74,422

Depreciation charged in the year 12,758

At 31 March 2018 87,180

Carrying amount

At 31 March 2018 409,255

At 31 March 2017 422,013

The museum operates from property held by Peterborough City Council as trustees for the charity. No 
value is included in these accounts for that property.

The land and buildings at Flag Fen have been revalued to the depreciated replacement cost value. The 
valuation was carried out by Peterborough City Council on 9 May 2011. There are certain restrictions on 
the land from one of the original funders to the site.

7 Related party transactions

There were no disclosable related party transactions during the year (2017 - none).

164



Charity Registration No. 1138230

Company Registration No. 07171668 (England and Wales)

VIVACITY CULTURE AND LEISURE

ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

165

AAC536_9
Typewritten text
APPENDIX J



VIVACITY CULTURE AND LEISURE

LEGAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE INFORMATION

Chairman of the Trustees Stewart Francis

Local authority appointed Trustees Steve Allen

Shazia Bashir
(appointed 17 July 2017)
(appointed 16 July 2018)

Community Trustees David Bath
Stewart Francis
Theo Anderton

Rachel Woodford
Keith Marriott"
Sarah Sewell *

lan Templeton * (appointed 17 July 2017)

* Member of Audit, Finance and Remuneration committee

Charity number

Company number

Principal address

1138230

07171668

Peterborough Central Library

Broadway
Peterborough
PE1 1RX

Registered office Peterborough Central Library

Broadway
Peterborough
PE1 1RX

Auditors Baldwins Audit Services
Ruthlyn House

90 Lincoln Road
Peterborough
Cambridgeshire
PE1 2SP

Bankers Barclays Bank PLC

Cathedral Square
Peterborough
Cambridgeshire

PE1 1HW

166



VIVACITY CULTURE AND LEISURE

CONTENTS

Page

Trustees' re port 1-9

Statement of Trustees' responsibilities 10

Independent auditor's report 11 - 12

Statement of financial activities

Summary income and expenditure account 14

Balance sheet 15 - 16

Statement of cash flows 17

Notes to the accounts 18- 36

167



VIVACITY CULTURE AND LEISURE

TRUSTEES' REPORT (INCLUDING THE STRATEGIC REPORT)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

The Trustees present their report and accounts for the year ended 31 March 2018

The accounts have been prepared in accordance with the accounting policies set out in note 1 to the accounts and

comply with the charity's Memorandum and Articles of Association, the Companies Act 2006 and the Statement of

Recommended Practice, applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting

Standards applicable in the UK & Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (effective 1 January 2015).

Structure, governance and management

The Trustees, who are also the directors for the purpose of company law, and who served during the year were:

Paul Simmons (Resigned May 2017)
Theo Anderton
Rachel Woodford
Navid Dean (Resigned May 2018)
David Bath
Stewart Francis
Keith Marriott
Sarah Sewell
Graham Casey (Resigned June 2017)
Janet Goodwin (Resigned June 2017)
Alan Sadler (Resigned May 2018)
Helen Milligan-Smith (Resigned June 2018)
June Bull (Appointed July 17) (Resigned June 18)
Steve Allen (Appointed July 17)
lan Templeton (Appointed July 17)

The organisation is a charitable company limited by guarantee, incorporated on 26 February 2010 and registered as

a charity on 4 October 2010. Peterborough City Council transferred its cultural and leisure services, comprising of

arts, libraries, heritage, theatre and sports into the charitable trust on 1 May 2010.

The organisation was established under a Memorandum of Association which established the objects and powers of

the organisation and is governed under its Articles of Association.

Vivacity Culture and Leisure (Vivacity) operates, for an agreed fee, some of its culture and leisure activities on behalf

of Peterborough City Council, which lease to Vivacity buildings and other assets. The assets are provided at no charge

to Vivacity on a 25 year lease/licence which commenced on 1 May 2010. Vivacity also manages Longthorpe Tower

which is owned by English Heritage.

Vivacity operates from 25 sites throughout Peterborough and employs over 500 people and 400 volunteers. Vivacity

is a company limited by guarantee and does not have share capital.

None of the Trustees have any beneficial interest in the company. All of the Trustees are members of the company

and guarantee to contribute E1 in the event of winding up.

As a limited company Vivacity is governed by its Members. There are two categories of Trustees, Community Trustees

and Local Authority Trustees. The Community Trustees are elected by the Members at a General Meeting and Local

Authority Trustees are proposed by Peterborough City Council. The governing document allows up to two Local

Authority Trustees to be appointed. Local Authority appointments cannot exceed 19.99% of all Trustee appointments.

Community Trustees are elected at a General Meeting and can serve up to three years before re-election for a further

period of three years before retirement. However, in exceptional circumstances a Community Trustees can serve a
maximum of eight years and the elected chair a maximum of nine years, before retirement. Local Authority Trustees

can hold office as decided by the Council.

168



VIVACITY CULTURE AND LEISURE

TRUSTEES' REPORT (INCLUDING THE STRATEGIC REPORT)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

Trustees meet six times a year to review the management of the organisation. They employ managers to take on the

day-to-day running of the activities. Trustees also meet managers in Committees to discuss the activities of specific
operations of the organisation in more detail. Membership of Committees reflects the interests and expertise of the

respective Trustees. Minutes of all Committee meetings are subsequently circulated to the full Board.

The on-boarding process for Trustees includes an induction programme, supported by in-depth briefings from Senior
managers and visits to our centres. Further training is arranged to meet the specific needs of individual Trustees.

Trustees do not receive a salary, but are entitled to claim expenses for attending meetings.

Vivacity has indemnified the Trustees of Vivacity against liability in respect of proceedings brought by third parties,

subject to the conditions set out in the Companies Act 2006. Such qualifying third party indemnity provision was in

force during the year.

The Senior Management team was as follows:

Mr K Tighe
Mrs P Whitbread
Mr J Marsden
Mr S Nolan
Mr R Hunt
Ms K Parkinson
Mrs N Lawton

Chief Executive Officer (Resigned June 2018)
Director of Resources and Company Secretary
Director of Sport and Healthy Living

Director of Business Development (Resigned September 2017)
Director of Culture
Marketing Director (Mat Leave May 17 —May 18)
Marketing Director (Mat Cover May 17 —May 18)

Objectives and activities

Related parties
Trustees and the Senior Management Team members are asked to complete an annual Disclosure Statement to notify

Vivacity of any involvement in any other organisations. This was most recently completed in March 2018 and revealed

no conflicts of interest.

A summary of transactions with related parties are set out in note 27 in the financial statements.

The Trustees confirm they have considered their duties and have referred to the guidance contained in the Charity

Commission's general guidance on public benefit when reviewing the charity's aims and objectives and in planning

future activities.

The Trustees are confident that the activities of Vivacity are carried out for the benefit of others as is detailed in the

rest of the information within the Trustees report.

Vivacity's Mission is:

"A charity that enriches lives by inspiring people through Culture, Sport and Healthy Living —Vivacity is committed to

ensuring Peterborough is a better place to live and work. "

During the next five years it is the objective of the Board and Staff of Vivacity to grow the business with four specific
drivers steering this work: inspire more people through all that we do, improve the quality of the Vivacity experience,
champion and influence the development of Culture, Sports and Healthy Living in Peterborough and grow our income

so Vivacity can do more. Each of these driving forces is equally important.

169



VIVACITY CULTURE AND LEISURE

TRUSTEES' REPORT (INCLUDING THE STRATEGIC REPORT)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

The principal activities undertaken by Vivacity are:

Museums, Libraries and Archives
Vivacity manages ten libraries, fifteen micro libraries, a mobile service covering routes across Peterborough, a Book
Bus for children in Peterborough schools, as well as all archives services. We deliver all of the universal offers for

libraries:

Reading: To help create a more literate and confident society by developing, delivering and promoting reading

activities in libraries
Digital: Library services have the resources and skills to deliver digital activities and training to the public,

especially individuals with limited digital capacity.
Learning: Libraries are present throughout a person's learning journey to build confidence, support education,

increase creativity and improve digital skills.
Health: To improve the health and wellbeing of local communities by providing a range of services that include

creative activities and volunteering opportunities to help connect people.
Information: That all library users are supported to access quality information and online services in key areas
such as careers, health, personal-finance and benefits.
Culture: More people have access to quality and diverse cultural experiences and events through libraries,

especially those less likely to access arts and culture.
Children's Promise: Every child and young person in libraries is inspired to read for pleasure, has access to a
diverse range of materials, can engage in a variety of digital activities and can take part in activities that improve

their well-being.

Vivacity's museums and heritage service operates from three sites; the historic city centre Museum, the Bronze Age

site at Flag Fen and the 14th century Longthorpe Tower which displays one of the most complete and important

sets of 14th century domestic wall paintings in Northern Europe. Vivacity delivers a Heritage Festival in

collaboration with the Peterborough Cathedral, is working with the Natural History Museum to deliver a schools and

museum programme for a further year and engages with schools to help deliver the national curriculum to bring

history to life for Key Stage one and two students. The museum and heritage team organise historically-themed

tours and ghost walks throughout the year and have recently opened 'Escape Rooms' in the cellars of the Museum

building.

S orts and Leisure
Vivacity manages seven well-equipped leisure centres across Peterborough, a hydrotherapy pool and an outdoor

swimming centre, providing opportunities for vigorous and gentle exercise in a competitive or non-competitive

environment. There is a wide range of activities available including fitness classes, swimming, indoor and outdoor

courts and pitches, and supervised gym facilities.

The Vivacity Swim Academy (learn to swim programme) recognises swimming is an important skill, and offers

teaching programmes for people of all ages and abilities.

Vivacity also provides a dedicated sports development team to get young people and adults more involved in sports

to encourage both active and healthy lifestyles. This is achieved through either participation or coaching, and includes

a dedicated member of staff whose role is to create new sporting opportunities for people with disabilities.

Our health and well-being team work closely with people who suffer wide ranging health conditions which limit their

access to mainstream services. A comprehensive exercise referral programme coupled with condition specific

rehabilitation classes are provided to those people to maintain and improve their health and well-being.

Theatre and Arts

Vivacity manages the Key Theatre, City Gallery and delivers arts festivals. Vivacity delivers a diverse programme of

arts development projects throughout the year and across the city — dance, theatre, comedy, music, galleries and

exhibitions, public art, amateur dramatics and youth theatre groups and large scale arts participation projects

170



VIVACITY CULTURE AND LEISURE

TRUSTEES' REPORT (INCLUDING THE STRATEGIC REPORT)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

Strategic Report

Risk Management

The Board of Trustees has overall responsibility for establishing and maintaining the whole system of internal control

and reviewing its effectiveness. The Trustees recognise that no system of internal control can provide absolute

assurance against material misstatement or loss or eliminate all risk of failure to achieve the organisation's objectives.

The system of internal control is designed to manage key risks and to provide reasonabie assurance that planned

objectives and outcomes are achieved. This will also give reasonable assurance about the reliability of financial and

operational information and the safeguarding of Vivacity's assets and reputation. This approach includes the regular

evaluation of the nature and extent of risks to which Vivacity is exposed.

The most significant risk facing Vivacity is the ability of Peterborough City Council to continue with the current level

of service fee paid to Vivacity in these times of austerity and grant reductions from Central Government. The Council

has signalled it will need to significantly reduce the fee over the coming years. The timing and level of the fee reduction

is currently unknown but this could have a major impact on the range and level of service Vivacity is able to deliver.

The Board has developed a culture of strong corporate governance. Key elements of the control framework and the

system for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal control are as follows:

Planning and approval:
Vivacity has adopted a formal process for approval of new projects which identifies risks and controls. Combined with

the budget process, which reviews risks and controls in existing processes, this generates a comprehensive review

of risks. Vivacity maintains a risk register in which risks are documented and evaluated. Major risks are identified and

the effectiveness of controls are assessed.

Committees:
Committees take a more detailed interest in specific areas of Vivacity's activities, and monitor performance against

key performance indicators.

Audit, Finance and Remuneration Committee:
The Audit, Finance and Remuneration Committee retains responsibility for key issues such as treasury management,

financial appraisal of major new projects, investment management and prevention and detection of fraud. The

Committee is also responsible for reporting to the Board of Trustees on the effectiveness of internal controls. The

Committee reviews the major risks, and assesses the effectiveness of controls in managing those risks. This includes

setting an internal audit programme of activities to assess the effectiveness of controls. The Committee submits

minutes of its meetings to the Board of Trustees for information. These minutes have been received and noted by the

Board of Trustees.

Monitoring and corrective action:
Financial reporting procedures include detailed budgets for the year ahead, detailed monthly management accounts,

and longer-term financial plans used for strategic planning. The Senior Management Team reviews the reports in

detail and they are considered and approved by the Trustees. Where objectives are not being met, the Senior

Management Team report on actions being taken to correct performance, and these are considered and approved by

the Trustees.

Vivacity's regular Quarterly Business Reviews allow operational teams the opportunity to share performance results

and changes to the risk map, and to plan corrective action.

Health and Safety:
The Board is aware of its responsibilities on all matters relating to health and safety. Vivacity has prepared detailed

health and safety policies and provides staff training and education on health and safety matters. An organisational

health and safety working group made up of senior managers, employees and volunteers meet quarterly to monitor

and review all health and safety related activity.

171



VIVACITY CULTURE AND LEISURE

TRUSTEES' REPORT (INCLUDING THE STRATEGIC REPORT)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

Employee Involvement:
We are committed to providing our employees with information about our activities, consulting with them on major

changes and generally developing an open culture in the organisation. Regular meetings are held between managers
and staff teams to allow a free flow of information, and we hold team briefing sessions to update staff on strategy and

other major developments.

Disabled Employees:
Vivacity gives full and fair consideration to applications for employment made by disabled persons, having regard to

their aptitude and abilities. Reasonable adjustments are made wherever possible and consideration given for

retraining employees who become disabled, to enable them to perform work identified as appropriate to their aptitude

and abilities.

Achievements and performance

Museums, Libraries and Archives:
During the year there were 359,425 physical visits to libraries. 417,076 items were issued from library stocks. 31,328
items were added to library stocks. As at 31 March 2018 the library stock size was 250, 102 items. The number of

attendees at library events, such as author and lecture talks, was 33,483 and the number of computer sessions was

82,713.

During the year there were 66,818 visits to the Peterborough Museum, 1,518 visits to Longthorpe Tower and 8,429
visits to Flag Fen. The number of school children participating in Heritage sessions was 12,993.The Heritage festival,

related fringe events and our walks and tour programmes attracted 28,432 visitors during the year.

Sports and Healthy Living:
During the year 1,434, 135 visits were made to our seven leisure centres and other activities promoted by our sports

development and health and well-being teams. Of these attendances we recorded 409,533 swims, 699,064 sports

activities and 325,538 visits to our network of gyms. This shows a 3.2% increase on our previous years' performance.

Theatre and Arts:
Key Feste attracted 5,000 attendees with another 5,000 people participating in other arts development activity. The

Key Theatre put on 345 performances and sold 73,225 tickets achieving main house occupancy at 61%.

Progress on objectives set out in the annual report:

Objective
Literacy for children —We will focus on helping to move Peterborough from being near the bottom nationally for Key

Stage 2 literacy, to a top half performance.

Progress as at 31 March 2018
Vivacity worked with the Council and the National Literacy Trust to develop the city's first 'Vision for Reading', bringing

together many partner in one strategic approach to improving children's reading. Vivacity's Book Bus has launched

and visits all primary schools, offering Universal Library membership to 4,000 eight year olds and a pack of material

for parents explaining the benefits of library membership.

Objective
Improving the wellbeing of people with health issues —We will become known nationally for the excellent work we do

in supporting people recovering from ill health.

Progress as at 31 March 2018
Our health and wellbeing team engage with like minded organisations and health professionals within the region and

participate as active members of the Sporta Public Health Group to share learning and best practice. This has included

best practice visits with other leisure trusts to compare services.

Objective
Must Farm and Flag Fen —Must Farm and our existing Bronze Age collections represent an unrivalled opportunity

to put Peterborough on the international heritage map.

172



VIVACITY CULTURE AND LEISURE

TRUSTEES' REPORT (INCLUDING THE STRATEGIC REPORT)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

Progress as at 31 March 2018
Vivacity has worked in partnership with Peterborough City Council, Cambridgeshire County Council, the University

of Cambridge and many other partners, to develop plans for a redevelopment of Peterborough Museum to house
the Must Farm finds. This led to the submission of a 25m bid to Heritage Lottery Fund in March 2018.

Objective
Sports for everyone —We will deliver excellent local sports and gym opportunities with a best in class customer
experience.

Progress as at 31 March 2018
We have continued to improve our offer with a number of small scale capital improvements to our centres. These
have included refurbished changing rooms at our outdoor swimming centre and improvements to changing
accommodation at Jack Hunt Swimming Pool. We have continued to roll out our Vivacity experience training to all

employees and have achieved an average net promoter score of 72.75% this year.

Objective
Business development —We will provide new venues and opportunities which will generate additional income
to reinvest in the work of the charity.

Progress as at 31 March 2018
We restructured our business development resource in September 2017 and continue to work on identifying new

business ventures and service improvements. We are working closely with another charity to jointly bring to fruition

an indoor play opportunity. Considerable progress has been made in establishing a customer retention strategy which

is becoming more embedded within the organisation.

Objective
Services for young people —We will deliver a one stop shop of great opportunities for young people in culture, sport
and healthy living.

Progress as at 31 March 2018
We have developed a new packaged schools offer with a dedicated resource to promote educational opportunities in

support of curriculum delivery. This service covers a wide range of opportunities across sport, libraries, heritage and

arts services. In addition we have grown our school holiday activity programmes to provide more opportunities across
a wider range of venues and community spaces.

Objective
Putting Peterborough on the cultural map —We will champion Peterborough as a day out destination with

outstanding cultural experiences.

Progress as at 31 March 2018
We have completed the conservations of 'Lagoon' by Sir Anthony Caro and 'Places to Be' by Sir Antony Gormley.

These will be installed in the city centre in summer 2018. We have been successful in attracting over L100,000 of

funding from Heritage Lottery Fund and Weston Art Fund towards the exhibition 'Treasures', Peterborough's

celebration of its 900th anniversary which will take place in the City Gallery in Autumn 2018.

Objective
Organisational development —We will be an award winning organisation where people feel proud to work and

volunteer.

Progress as at 31 March 2018
We were the proud winners of the Employee Engagement award at the Peterborough Business Awards in November

2017 and finalists at the Sporta Awards in May 2017 for our work on Workforce Development. We ran our third annual

employee satisfaction survey in February 2018, when 82% of respondents said they felt proud to work for Vivacity.

173



VIVACITY CULTURE AND LEISURE

TRUSTEES' REPORT (INCLUDING THE STRATEGIC REPORT)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

Working in Partnership

We place a strong emphasis on the way we work in collaboration with others. This year we have worked closely, with

a range of different organisations. This has ranged from fully scoped business ventures supported by legal

agreements to light touch co-operation with 'like-minded' bodies. The number of organisations Vivacity works with is

extensive but the scope of this work can be seen from the following examples.

Our main collaboration is with Peterborough City Council with which we have formal contracts. We have added further

services throughout the year to support the council in maintaining its delivery of services which were at risk of being

disconnected. These have included the management and operation of Bretton Splash Park and St Georges
Hydrotherapy pool.

Vivacity is now leading a team to celebrate the archaeological finds from Must Farm and Flag Fen through a significant

extension to Peterborough Museum. A team comprising Vivacity, assisted by Peterborough City Council,

Cambridgeshire County Council and Cambridge Archaeological Unit have applied to Heritage Lottery Fund for F4.9m

towards a 29m project.

Vivacity, through its Chief Executive, continues to be part of Peterborough's city leadership forum. This group enables
and creates communication insight and opportunities for partnering others in projects. In this financial year we have

provided financial and technical support to our arts and sport organisations within the cultural sector and invested

210,000 into five different organisations. Finally Vivacity continues to provide the lead to a consortium called

Peterborough Presents. .. The consortium delivers artistic opportunities for people who have never been drawn to

participating in the arts. In this year 2200,000 was invested by the consortium to provide great community focused
activities.

Financial Review
Full details of our financial performance during the year ended 31"March 2018 are shown in the notes to the financial

disclosures, balance sheet and cash flow statements.

Income and expenditure for 2017-18 are shown in the table below:

Incoming resources
Voluntary Income

Charitable Activities

Investments

Expenditure
Raising Funds

Charitable Activities

Net interest on defined benefit pension scheme

2017-18

9,589
10,403,325

1,817

(1 22,244)

(1 0,71 9,296)
10,000

2016-17

1 0,729
10,050,477

4,658

(111,279)
(9,939,375)

(20,000)

Net incoming/(outgoing) resources
(416,809) (4,790)

174



VIVACITY CULTURE AND LEISURE

TRUSTEES' REPORT (INCLUDING THE STRATEGIC REPORT)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

Income
Charitable activities income increased by F353,000, there were three significant factors:

~ Significant growth in Sports income of f260,000
~ Significant growth in Theatre income F140,000
~ This was off-set by a reduction in grant funding of around 250,000.

Expenditure
Charitable activities expenditure increased by f780,000, there were four significant factors:

~ Employee costs have risen by 8460,000. Around 2200, 000 was as a result of the FRS17 pension year end

valuation adjustment. In addition to this staff received a 2% pay-award on 1"April 2017.
~ Leasing costs of Vivacity Premier Fitness centre increased by f140,000 last year, the cost of the lease is

linked to improved performance of the centre.
~ Three sculptures were restored during the year, 'Bird in Flight', 'Places to be' and 'Lagoon'. This cost around

f60,000 last year.
~ An additional C50,000 was spent on employee training and organisational development to improve employee

engagement and capabilities throughout the organisation.

Reserves Policy
Vivacity has a policy of allocating reserves to the planned new activities and to set aside prudent reserves to cover

contingencies. The policy was reviewed this year. Vivacity's reserves are currently invested to provide returns which

along with fundraised income will help to support existing projects and develop new ones.

To safeguard against unforeseen shortfalls, in accordance with Charity Commission guidelines or changes in the

funding of the services and programmes a Contingency Fund has been established, this currently represents 0.7
month's expenditure. Future committed programmes plus additional specific exposures will be assessed each year.

Whilst firmly not for profit Vivacity is acutely aware that it needs to establish working surpluses in order to create a
reserve pot for unforeseen circumstances. The size of these reserves has, following careful consideration, been set

by the Vivacity Board at 2650,000. Monies generated beyond this will be re-invested into cultural opportunities for

the wider community.

The endowment fund is in respect of the sculpture collection and is a restricted fund which can only be used to

maintain, develop and improve public access to the collection.

The general funds represent Vivacity's available free funds. Movements between funds are approved annually by

the Finance Committee, and are set out in Note 23 to these accounts. The current allocation of reserves is

sumrnarised as follows:

Reserves

Set aside for purposes specified by the donors (Restricted fund)

Held as a contingency (Designated fund)

Defined benefit pension scheme asset (Designated fund)

Operating reserves (Unrestricted funds)

Sculptures (Endowment fund)

Flag Fen Capital Development Fund

2018

113,186
650,000
383,000
39,770

1,844,500
150,000

2017

105,281
724,000
473,000
208,484

1,844,500
150,000

Total 3,180,456 3,505,265

175



VIVACITY CULTURE AND LEISURE

TRUSTEES' REPORT (INCLUDING THE STRATEGIC REPORT)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

Plans for the future

Financial Independence —we will seek to become financially independent of the Council, by growing and diversifying

our income streams and driving efficiencies out of the organisation. This will include developing new services, working

with new partners and maximising our gym membership income by keeping members longer.

Improving Children's Reading —we will contribute to Peterborough's shared 'Vision for Reading', ensuring that by

2021 improvement in literacy for Peterborough's children will be double the national rate by taking our library service
to every key stage 2 child in the area and providing engaging reasons for them to interact with our services.

Improving the Wellbeing of People with Health Issues —our aim is to become known nationally for the excellent work

we do in supporting people recovering from ill health.

Opportunities for Young People —we will deliver a one stop shop of great opportunities for you people in culture, sport
and healthy living.

Putting Peterborough on the Cultural Map —we will champion Peterborough as a place bursting with culture and

heritage and become a nationally recognised leader in arts and culture.

Disclosure of information to auditors
Each of the Trustees has confirmed that there is no information of which they are aware which is relevant to the audit,

but of which the auditor is unaware. They have further confirmed that they have taken appropriate steps to identify

such relevant information and to establish that the auditors are aware of such information.

Auditors
As a result of Rawlinsons joining the Baldwins Group, the auditors of the company have changed from Rawlinsons to

Baldwins Audit Services.

In accordance with the company's articles, a resolution proposing that Baldwins Audit Services be reappointed as
auditor of the company will be put at a General Meeting.

Staff, Volunteers and Trustees
Finally I would like to thank the staff, volunteers and Trustees of Vivacity for their dedication and hard work during the

past year.

ehalf of the board of Trustees

tewart Francis
Chairman

Dated: I Ll il I lW'

176



VIVACITY CULTURE AND LEISURE

STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

The Community Trustees, who are also the directors of Vivacity Culture and Leisure for the purpose of company

law, are responsible for preparing the Trustees' Report and the accounts in accordance with applicable law and

United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

Company Law requires the Community Trustees to prepare accounts for each financial year which give a true

and fair view of the state of affairs of the charity and of the incoming resources and application of resources,

including the income and expenditure, of the charitable company for that year.

In preparing these accounts, the Community Trustees are required to:

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

- observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP;

- make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

- state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures

disclosed and explained in the accounts; and

- prepare the accounts on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the charity will

continue in operation.

The Community Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that disclose with

reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the charity and enable them to ensure that the

accounts comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the

charity and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Disclosure of information to auditors

Each of the Trustees has confirmed that there is no information of which they are aware which is relevant to

the audit, but of which the auditor is unaware. They have further confirmed that they have taken appropriate

steps to identify such relevant information and to establish that the auditors are aware of such information.

177



VIVACITY CULTURE AND LEISURE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE COMMUNITY TRUSTEES OF VIVACITY CULTURE AND LEISURE

Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Vivacity Culture and Leisure (the 'charity') for the year ended 31

March 2018 which comprise the statement of financial activities, the balance sheet, the statement of cash flows

and the notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial

reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting

Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK

and Republic of Ireland (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our opinion, the financial statements:

give a true and fair view of the state of the charitable company's affairs as at 31 March 2018 and of its

incoming resources and application of resources, for the year then ended;

have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;

and
have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable

law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit

of the accounts section of our report. We are independent of the charity in accordance with the ethical

requirements that are relevant to our audit of the accounts in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and

we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the

audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to

report to you where:
the Trustees' use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is

not appropriate; or
the Community Trustees have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties

that may cast significant doubt about the charity's ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of

accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are

authorised for issue.

Other information
The Community Trustees are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the

information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in

doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our

knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material

inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material

misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the

work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are

required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

178



VIVACITY CULTURE AND LEISURE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

TO THE COMMUNITY TRUSTEES OF VIVACITY CULTURE AND LEISURE

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Charities (Accounts and

Reports) Regulations 2008 require us to report to you if, in our opinion:

the information given in the financial statements is inconsistent in any material respect with the Trustees'

report; or
sufficient accounting records have not been kept; or

the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records; or

we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of Community Trustees
As explained more fully in the statement of Trustees' responsibilities, the Community Trustees, who are also the

directors of the charity for the purpose of company law, are responsible for the preparation of the financial

statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the

Community Trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Community Trustees are responsible for assessing the charity's ability

to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going

concern basis of accounting unless the Community Trustees either intend to liquidate the charitable company or

to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
We have been appointed as auditors under section 144 of the Charities Act 2011 and report in accordance with

the Act and relevant regulations made or having effect thereunder.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our

opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in

accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise

from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be

expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial

Reporting Council's website at: http: //www. frc.org. uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our

auditor's report.

Mr Mark Jackson FCA DChA (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of Baldwins Audit Services /g /( z o i g

Statutory Auditor Ruthlyn House

90 Lincoln Road
Peterborough
Cambridgeshire
PE1 2SP

Baldwins Audit Services is eligible for appointment as auditor of the charity by virtue of its eligibility for

appointment as auditor of a company under of section 1212 of the Companies Act 2006

179



VIVACITY CULTURE AND LEISURE

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
INCLUDING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

Notes

Unrestricted Designated Restricted Endowment

funds funds funds funds:
Sculptures

f.

Total
2018

Total
2017

Voluntary income 3
Charitable activities 4
Investments 5

9,447
9,472, 197

1,817

142
931,128

9,589 10,729
10,403,325 10,050,477

1,817 4,658

Total incoming resources

Ex enditure n:
Fundraising and
publicity

9,483,461

118,913

931,270

3,331

10,414,731 10,065,864

122,244 111,279

Charitable activities 7 9,799,262 920,034 10,719,296 9,939,375

Net interest on
defined benefit
pension scheme (10,000) (10,000) 20,000

Total resources expended 9,918,175 (10,000) 923,365 10,831,540 10,070,654

Net (outgoing)/
incoming
resources before
transfers (434,714) 10,000 7,905 (416,809) (4,790)

Gross transfers
between funds 266,000 (266,000)

Net (outgoing)/incoming
resources (168,714) (256,000) 7,905 (416,809) (4,790)

92,000

Net movement in funds (168,714) (164,000) 7,905

Other recognised gains and losses
Actuarial gain/(loss)
on defined benefit
pension scheme 92,000 1,061,000

(324,809) 1,056,210

Fund balances at 1

April 2017 208,484 1,347,000 105,281 1,844, 500 3,505,265 2,449,055

Fund balances at
31 March 2018 39,770 1,183,000 113,186 1,844,500 3,180,456 3,505,265

The statement of financial activities also complies with the requirements for an income and expenditure

account under the Companies Act 2006.

180



VIVACITY CULTURE AND LEISURE

SUMMARY INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

All income funds
2018 2017

E

Gross income

Total expenditure from income funds

Net expenditure for the year

10,414,731

10,831,540

(416,809)

10,065,864

10,070,654

(4,790)

181



VIVACITY CULTURE AND LEISURE

BALANCE SHEET

As AT 31 MARCH 2018

Notes
2018 2017

E

Fixed assets
Tangible assets
Heritage assets

12
13

497,686
1,844,500

468,336
1,844, 500

2,342, 186 2,312,836

Current assets
Stocks
Debtors
Cash at bank and in hand

57,390
607, 108

2,205,471

56,533
412,666

2,043,065

Creditors: amounts falling due within
one year 17

2,869,969

(2,414,699)

2,512,264

(1,792,835)

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Defined benefit pension surplus

Net assets

19

455,270

2,797,456

383,000

3,180,456

719,429

3,032,265

473,000

3,505,265

Capital funds
Endowment funds - general
Income funds
Restricted funds

Designated funds

General unrestricted funds

20

21

22 1,183,000
39,770

1,844,500

113,186

1,222,770

3,180,456

1,347,000
208,484

1,844,500

105,281

1,555,484

3,505,265

182



VIVACITY CULTURE AND LEISURE

BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)

AS AT 31 MARCH 201S

The company is entitled to the exemption from the audit requirement contained in section 477 of the Companies

Act 2006, for the year ended 31 March 2018, although an audit has been carried out under section 144 of the

Charities Act 2011. No member of the company has deposited a notice, pursuant to section 476, requiring an

audit of these financial statements under the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

The Community Trustees acknowledge their responsibilities for ensuring that the charity keeps accounting

records which comply with section 386 of the Act and for preparing financial statements which give a true and

fair view of the state of affairs of the company as at the end of the financial year and of its incoming resources

and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for the financial year in accordance with the

requirements of sections 394 and 395 and which otherwise comply with the requirements of the Companies Act

2006 relating to financial statements, so far as applicable to the company.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions applicable to companies

subject to the small companies regime.

The financial statements were approved by the Community Trustees on ..'. . .. .l. ....I, ~... ..
rt

Keith Marriott

Trustee

Company Registration No. 07171668

183



VIVACITY CULTURE AND LEISURE

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 201S

Notes
2018

F
2017

F

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 25 398,637 321,052

Investing activities
Purchase of tangible fixed assets
Interest received

(238,048)
1,817

(327,044)
4,658

Net cash used in investing activities

Net cash used in financing activities

(236,231) (322,386)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

162,406

2,043,065

2,205,471

(1,334)

2,044, 399

2,043,065

184



VIVACITY CULTURE AND LEISURE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

Accounting policies

Charity information
Vivacity Culture and Leisure is a private company limited by guarantee incorporated in England and Wales.
The registered office is Peterborough Central Library, Broadway, Peterborough, PE1 1RX.

Accounting convention
The accounts have been prepared in accordance with the charity's governing document, the Companies
Act 2006 and "Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to
charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the
UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102)" (as amended for accounting periods commencing from 1 January
2016). The charity is a Public Benefit Entity as defined by FRS 102.

The accounts are prepared in sterling, which is the functional currency of the charity. Monetary amounts in

these financial statements are rounded to the nearest E.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, modified to include the
revaluation of freehold properties and to include investment properties and certain financial instruments at
fair value. The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below.

1.2 Going concern
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. Vivacity have a contract to deliver

culture and leisure services on behalf of Peterborough City Council. The contract commenced in May 2010
for a period of 20 years with an option to extend for a further 5 years to 2035.

1.3 Charitable funds
Unrestricted funds are available for use at the discretion of the Community Trustees in furtherance of their
charitable objectives unless the funds have been designated for other purposes.

Designated funds include a contingency fund to safeguard against unforeseen shortfalls or changes in the
funding services and programmes. This is in line with the charity's reserves policy.

Restricted funds are subject to specific conditions by donors as to how they may be used. The purposes
and uses of the restricted funds are set out in the notes to the financial statements.

Endowment funds are subject to specific conditions by donors that the capital must be maintained by the
charity.

1.4 Incoming resources
Voluntary income is received by way of donations and gifts and is included in full in the Statement of

Financial Activities when receivable. The value of services provided by volunteers has not been included.

Grants - fixed asset grants are recognised in full in the Statement of Financial Activities when the condition

has been met and the asset has been purchased. Revenue grants are normally conditional upon a
programme of activities and events being delivered, and are recognised in the Statement of Financial
Activities when the activity or event has been delivered.

Income from investments is included in the year in which it is receivable.

Incoming resources from charitable activities includes sales of services and miscellaneous income from

the public for accessing culture and leisure activities, in addition to the Management Service fee received
from Peterborough City Council.

185



VIVACITY CULTURE AND LEISURE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

1 Accounting policies (Continued)

1.5 Resources expended
Central support costs are apportioned over services in relation to the services direct costs.

Resources expended are recognised in the year in which they are incurred. Resources expended include

attributed VAT that is not recoverable. Resources expended are allocated to the particular project where

the project cost relates directly to that project. However, the cost of overall direction and administration on

each project, comprising the salary and overhead costs of the central function, is estimated and

apportioned to each project.

Charitable activities are those costs incurred directly in furtherance of the objects of the charity and include

project management.

Governance costs are those costs incurred in connection with the strategic management of Vivacity

Culture & Leisure. These include auditors fees, costs of holding Trustees board and sub-committee

meetings, recruitment of new Trustees and business development.

1.6 Tangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets are initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at cost or valuation, net of

depreciation and any impairment losses.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets less their residual values over
their useful lives on the following bases:

Land and buildings

Plant and machinery

Fixtures, fittings & equipment

Motor vehicles

7% - 20% straight line

10% - 33% straight line

33% straight line

10% - 14% straight line

The gain or loss arising on the disposal of an asset is determined as the difference between the sale

proceeds and the carrying value of the asset, and is recognised in net income/(expenditure) for the year.

The charity has a capitalisation policy in place for any expenditure over E5,000.

The financial statements do not include the cost of land, buildings and equipment used at minimal rent by

Vivacity Culture and Leisure, whose title rests with Peterborough City Council. It is not practicably possible

to attribute a value to this benefit.

1.7 Heritage assets
Heritage assets (sculptures) have been valued in the accounts at their market value as at September
2012. An annual review of each sculpture will be carried out to identify any indications of impairment.

1.8 Impairment of fixed assets
At each reporting end date, the charity reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to

determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any).

186



VIVACITY CULTURE AND LEISURE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 201S

1 Accounting policies (Continued)

1.9 Stocks
Stocks are stated at the lower of cost and estimated selling price less costs to complete and sell. Cost
comprises direct materials and, where applicable, direct labour costs and those overheads that have been
incurred in bringing the stocks to their present location and condition. Items held for distribution at no or
nominal consideration are measured the lower of replacement cost and cost.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price less all estimated costs of completion and costs to be
incurred in marketing, selling and distribution.

1.10 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term liquid

investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are
shown within borrowings in current liabilities.

1.11 Financial instruments
The charity has elected to apply the provisions of Section 11 'Basic Financial Instruments' and Section 12
'Other Financial Instruments Issues' of FRS 102 to all of its financial instruments.

Financial instruments are recognised in the charity's balance sheet when the charity becomes party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset, with the net amounts presented in the financial statements, when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Basic financial assets
Basic financial assets, which include trade and other receivables and cash and bank balances, are initially

measured at transaction price including transaction costs and are subsequently carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the
transaction is measured at the present value of the future receipts discounted at a market rate of interest.

Basic financial liabilities
Basic financial liabilities, including trade and other payables, are initially recognised at transaction price
unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the debt instrument is measured at the
present value of the future receipts discounted at a market rate of interest. Debt instruments are
subsequently carried at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method.

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of operations from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within

one year or less. If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities. Trade payables are recognised initially

at transaction price and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

1.12 Employee benefits
The cost of any unused holiday entitlement is recognised in the period in which the employee's services
are received.

Termination benefits are recognised immediately as an expense when the charity is demonstrably
committed to terminate the employment of an employee or to provide termination benefits.

187



VIVACITY CULTURE AND LEISURE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 201S

1 Accounting policies (Continued)

1.13 Retirement benefits
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are charged as an expense as they fall due.

Vivacity Culture & Leisure operates a defined contribution scheme for all new employees and a defined
benefit scheme for employees in post to 1 May 2010 and who were a member at the time of the
Cambridgeshire Local Government Pension scheme, both of which require contributions to be made to
separately administered funds.

Contributions in respect of the defined contribution scheme are charged to the income and expenditure
account as they become payable in accordance with the scheme rules.

Contributions to the defined benefit scheme are charged to the income and expenditure account so as to
spread the cost over the employees' working lives with Vivacity Culture 8 Leisure.

1.14 Leases
Rentals payable under operating leases, induding any lease incentives received, are charged to income
on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

2 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

In the application of the charity's accounting policies, the Community Trustees are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that are not

readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical

experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting

estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised where the revision affects only that

period, or in the period of the revision and future periods where the revision affects both current and future

periods.

3 Voluntary income

Unrestricted
funds

Restricted
funds

Total
2018

Total
2017

Donations and gifts

For the year ended 31 March 2017

9,447

9,485

142

1,244

9,589 10,729

10,729

188



VIVACITY CULTURE AND LEISURE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

4 Charitable activities

2018
E

2017

Sports Services
Arts

Museums, Libraries and Archives

Management Service Fee
Service Level Agreements
Theatre
Other income

6,363,620
143,240
639,688

1,514,149
607,240

1,135,388

6, 103,160
99,975

734,744
1,513,657

600,218
996,426

2,297

10,403,325 10,050,477

Analysis by fund

Unrestricted funds
Restricted funds

9,472, 197
931,128

9,044,652
1,005,825

10,403,325 10,050,477

5 Investments

2018 2017

Interest receivable 1,817 4,658

189



VIVACITY CULTURE AND LEISURE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

6 Expenditure on fundraising and publicity

Unrestricted Restricted
funds funds

Total
2018

Total
2017

Other fundraising costs
Staff costs
Depreciation and impairment

Support costs

15,617
93,419

9
9,868

118,913

3,331

3,331

15,617
93,419

9
13,199

122,244

27,574
71,199

33
12,473

111,279

For the year ended 31 March 2017
Fundraising and publicity 108,074 3,205 111,279

190



VIVACITY CULTURE AND LEISURE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 201S

7 Expenditure on charitable activities

Sports
services

f

Arts Theatre Total Total
2017

f

Staff costs
Depreciation
Other costs

1,358,674
46,373

850,002

3,178,937
130,869

2, 134,019

114,759
82

267,913

491,688
31,374

956,417

5,144,058
208,698

4,208,351

4,758,565
265, 124

3,798,515

2,255,049 5,443,825 382,754 1,479,479 9,561,107 8,822, 204

Share of support costs
(see note 8)
Share of governance
costs (see note 8)

222, 833 537,933

50,333 121,508

37,822 146,195 944,783

8,543 33,022 213,406

2,528,215 6, 103,266 429, 119 1,658,696 10,719,296

940,561

176,610

9,939,375

Analysis by fund

Unrestricted funds

Restricted funds
2,040,703 5,877,015 279,351 1,602, 193 9,799,262

487,512 226, 251 149,768 56,503 920,034

2,528,215 6,103,266 429, 119 1,658,696 10,719,296

For the year ended 31 March 2017

Unrestricted funds

Restricted funds
1,820,257 5,557,936

527,316 266, 169
208, 180 1,398,713
103,076 57,728

8,985,086
954,289

2,347,573 5,824, 105 311,256 1,456,441 9,939,375

191



VIVACITY CULTURE AND LEISURE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

8 Support costs
Support Governance

costs costs
f

2018 2017

Staff costs
Depreciation
ICT

Legal services
HR and payroll

Other costs

347, 132
770

381,153
25,692

118,477
82,333

175,349

40,491

522,481
770

381,153
25,692

118,477
122,824

471,709
2,945

426,005
(1,653)

117,529
113,143

955,557 215,840 1,171,397 1,129,678

Analysed between
Fundraising

Charitable activities

10,774 2,434 13,208 12,507
944,783 213,406 1,158,189 1,117,171

955,557 215,840 1,171,397 1,129,678

9 Community Trustees

None of the Community Trustees (or any persons connected with them) received any remuneration during

this or the prior year.

192



VIVACITY CULTURE AND LEISURE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

10 Employees

Number of employees
The average monthly number employees during the year was:

2018
Number

2017
Number

Museums, Libraries and Archives

Sports Services
Arts

Theatre
Support

86
268

4
40
26

86
262

6
31
22

424 407

Employment costs 2018
f

2017
E

Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Other pension costs

5,254, 524
305,064
200,370

4,830,498
257,081
213,894

5,759,958 5,301,473

The average monthly number of employees on a full time equivalent basis during the year was xxx (2017
- 217).

Included in the above are redundancy costs of f58, 146 (2017 - E7,958).

The number of employees whose annual remuneration was F60,000 or
more were:

60,000 to 70,000
70,000 to 80,000
80,000 to 90,000

2018
Number

2017
Number

2

Of the employees whose emoluments exceed f60,000, 1 (2017: 1) have retirement benefits accruing
under defined benefit pension schemes.

11 Taxation

Given that the primary objective of the charitable company is charitable and the charitable company is not
trading for profit, the charitable company is exempt from taxation under section 505 of ICTA 1988.

193



VIVACITY CULTURE AND LEISURE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 201S

12 Tangible fixed assets
Land and Plant and Fixtures,
buildings machinery fittings &

equipment
E F

INotor
vehicles

Total

Cost
At 1 April 2017
Additions

68, 197 1,267,677 415,024 1,750,898
29,827 107,370 100,851 238,048

At 31 March 2018 98,024 1,375,047 415,024 100,851 1,988,946

Depreciation and impairment
At 1 April 2017
Depreciation charged in the year

14,212
9,506

954,347 314,003
152,459 36,942

1,282,562
9,791 208,698

At 31 March 2018 23,718 1,106,806 350,945 9,791 1,491,260

Carrying amount
At 31 March 2018 74,306 268,241 64,079 91,060 497,686

At 31 March 2017 53,985 313,330 101,021 468,336

13 Heritage assets

The heritage assets are a collection of 26 sculptures which were donated from the Peterborough Sculpture
Trust on 31 March 2014. The assets have been valued and a full conditions survey conducted in

September 2012 by Rupert Harris Conservation at F1,844, 500. An interim valuation on all 26 sculptures in

the range was carried out in March 2018 with no impairment of these items noted. The collection ranges in

size and material, most of which are on permanent display around the city of Peterborough. The collection
has increased in value in the current year following the restoration of 'Places to Be' by Antony Gormley, a
collection of three figures which are now on display on the roof tops of Peterborough's Cathedral Square.
The sculptures can only be sold to develop the collection further, and to advance the education and
enjoyment of the public in art by placing, maintaining and promoting the collection in public places.

14 Financial instruments

Carrying amount of financial assets
Trade Debtors
Cash
Other debtors
Accrued income

2018

505,495
2,205,471

19,944
37,443

2017
F

268,739
2,043,065

61,265
33,495

2,768,353 2,406,564

194



VIVACITY CULTURE AND LEISURE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

14 Financial instruments 2018
(Continued)

2017

Carrying amount of financial liabilities
Trade creditors
Other creditors
Accruais

281,923
327,708

1,049, 198

590,990
230, 182
426,645

1,658,829 1,247,817

15 Stocks
2018

f
2017

E

Finished goods and goods for resale 57,390 56,533

16 Debtors

Amounts falling due within one year:
2018

F
2017

f

Trade debtors
Other debtors
Prepayments and accrued income

505,495
19,944
81,669

268,739
61,265
82,662

607, 108 412,666

17 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Notes
2018

F
2017

Other taxation and social security
Deferred income
Trade creditors
Other creditors
Accruals

18
217,642
538,228
281,923
327,708

1,049, 198

106,902
438, 116
590,990
230, 182
426,645

2,414,699 1,792,835

195



VIVACITY CULTURE AND LEISURE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

18 Deferred income

2018
F

2017
E

Deferred grants and income in advance 538,228 438,116

Deferred income is included in the financial statements as follows:

Current liabilities 538,228 438, 116

19 Retirement benefit schemes

Vivacity Culture & Leisure offers a defined contribution scheme for all employees who are not members of
the defined benefit scheme. Contributions are made to a separately administered fund.

Contributions in respect of the defined contribution scheme are charged to the income and expenditure
account as they become payable in accordance with the scheme rules. The employer's contribution is a
maximum of 6%. As at 31 March 2018 there were 141 active members in this scheme.

The charge to profit and loss in respect of defined contribution schemes was F38,267 (2017 - 243,068).

Defined benefit schemes
Vivacity Culture & Leisure participates in the Cambridgeshire Local Government Pension Scheme. The
Scheme is funded and is contracted out of the state scheme. This scheme has been closed to all new
employees with effect from 1 May 2010. The employer's contribution is 18.8%. As at 31 March 2018 there
were 37 active members in this scheme. An actuary valuation was conducted during 2017-18 and future
employers contributions will remain 18.8%.

The Cambridgeshire Local Government Pension Scheme, a final salary defined benefit scheme, is
administered in accordance with the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2007. For the
purposes of FRS102 it has been possible to identify Vivacity's share of the underlying assets and liabilities
of the Cambridgeshire County Council Pension Fund.

The assets of the scheme are invested and managed independently of the finances of the Charity. The
pension costs relating to this scheme is calculated on the projected unit method and is assessed with the
advice of a qualified actuary. The latest actuarial valuation of this scheme was on 31 March 2018 and was
carried out by Hymans Robertson LLP, an independent actuary.

Key assumptions
2018

0/

2017
0/

Discount rate
Expected rate of increase of pensions in payment
Expected rate of salary increases

2.7
2.3
2.6

2.7
2.4
2.7

196



VIVACITY CULTURE AND LEISURE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

19 Retirement benefit schemes (Continued)

Mortality assumptions
The assumed life expectations on retirement at age 65 are:

Retiring today
- Males
- Females

2018
Years

22.4
24.4

2017
Years

22.4
24.0

Retiring in 20 years
- Males
- Females

24.0
26.3

24.4
26.3

Amounts recognised in net incoming/(outgoing) resources:
2018 2017

Current service cost
Net interest on defined benefit liability/(asset)

354,000
(10,000)

222, 000
20,000

Total costs 344,000 242, 000

Other recognised gains and losses:
2018 2017

Actual return on scheme assets
Less: calculated interest element

(114,000)
352,000

(2,377,000)
379,000

Return on scheme assets excluding interest income

Actuarial changes related to obligations

238,000 (1,998,000)
(330,000) 937,000

The amounts included in the balance sheet arising from the charity's

obligations in respect of defined benefit plans are as follows:
2018 2017

E

Present value of defined benefit obligations

Fair value of plan assets
12,848,000 12,521,000

(13,231,000) (12,994,000)

Surplus in scheme (383,000) (473,000)

197



VIVACITY CULTURE AND LEISURE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

19 Retirement benefit schemes (Continued)

Movements in the present value of defined benefit obligations:
2018

E

Liabilities at 1 April 2017
Current service cost
Benefits paid
Contributions from scheme members

Actuarial gains and losses
Interest cost

12,521,000
354,000
(97,000)
58,000

(330,000)
342,000

At 31 March 2018 12,848,000

The defined benefit obligations arise from plans which are wholly or partly funded.

Movements in the fair value of plan assets:
2018

Fair value of assets at 1 April 2017
Interest income
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest)

Benefits paid

Contributions by the employer
Contributions by scheme members

12,994,000
352,000

(238,000)
(97,000)
162,000
58,000

At 31 March 2018 13,231,000

The fair value of plan assets at the reporting period end was as follows:
2018

F
2017

E

Equity instruments

Debt instruments

Property
Cash

10,187,870
1,720,030

926,170
396,930

10,135,320
1,689,220

779,640
389,820

13,231,000 12,994,000

198



VIVACITY CULTURE AND LEISURE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

20 Endowment funds

Endowment funds represent assets which must be held permanently by the charity. Income arising on the
endowment funds can be used in accordance with the objects of the charity and is included as
unrestricted income. Any capital gains or losses arising on the assets form part of the fund.

Movement in funds
Balance at 1 Incoming Resources Balance at 31

April 2017 resources expended March 2018
E E

Permanent endowments
Sculpture collection 1,844,500 1,844,500

1,844, 500 1,844,500

Refer to Note 13 Heritage Assets.

199



VIVACITY CULTURE AND LEISURE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

21 Restricted funds

The income funds of the charity include restricted funds comprising the following unexpended balances of

donations and grants held on trust for specific purposes:

Balance at 1
April 2017

Movement in funds
Incoming Resources Balance at 31

resources expended March 2018
E E

Book fund

Museums, libraries and archives

Sports development
Arts

SLA
Theatre

46,313
52, 111
6,857

239,831
178,296
68,316

138,074
295,453

11,300

(237,298)
(181,315)

(59,925)
(138,074)
(295,453)

(11,300)

48,846
49,092
15,248

105,281 931,270 (923,365) 113,186

Book Fund
The funding and management agreement with Peterborough City Council, makes provision for the

replenishment and update of library stocks and has ring fenced a proportion of the service fee to do so.

Museums, Libraries and Archives
Grants have been received from the Arts Council to support a number of projects which include Museum

and Schools programme ' Real World Science' working with the Natural History Museum to unlock the

potential of natural science collection to enhance secondary science teaching and learning; Libraries Fund

to improve reading and story-telling amongst families where English is their second language; Museums

Small Capital Fund to improve the Museum's Art Gallery security and from the Heritage Lottery Fund to

digitize, research and explore two unique guest books from World War 1.

Sports Development
Grants have been received to support families and foster carers with disabled children to access cycling

projects and for Vivacity to purchase specialist equipment to host the events. Grant funding was also

received to contribute to and improve health and well being participation and opportunities for Over 55's,

14-25 year olds, holiday activities, cycling and walking initiatives.

Arts
Grants have been received from the Arts Council and Peterborough City Council to deliver an arts

development programme commencing 2013 to develop local artist talent and employability.

Service Level Agreements
Vivacity received income from Peterborough City Council to purchase the following services - Insurance

Management, Health and Safety Management, Internal Audit, ICT support and Library Vehicles

maintenance. During the year Vivacity purchased all of these services from Peterborough City Council.

200



VIVACITY CULTURE AND LEISURE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

22 Designated funds

The income funds of the charity include the following designated funds which have been set aside out of

unrestricted funds by the trustees for specific purposes:

Balance at 1
April 2017

Movement in funds
Incoming Resources Transfers Investments Balance at 31

resources expended gains/losses March 2018
f E E

Contingency Fund

Defined benefit
pension scheme
Flag Fen
Development Fund

724, 000

473,000

150,000

10,000

(74,000)

(192,000) 92,000

650,000

383,000

150,000

1,347,000 10,000 (266,000) 92,000 1,183,000

Vivacity are working with strategic partners to fund a capital redevelopment of Flag Fen to enhance the

visitor experience, educational offer and to exhibit the Bronze Age findings from Must Farm.

23 Analysis of net assets between funds
Unrestricted

funds
E

Designated Restricted Endowment
funds funds funds

Total

Fund balances at 31 March
2018 are represented by:

Tangible assets
Heritage assets
Current assets/(liabilities)
Provisionsand pensions

497,686

(457,916) 800,000
383,000

113,186
1,844,500

497,686
1,844, 500

455,270
383,000

39,770 1,183,000 113,186 1,844,500 3,180,456

201



VIVACITY CULTURE AND LEISURE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

24 Operating lease commitments
In addition to the amounts noted below a further licence fee is payable on the land and buildings

commitment which is dependant upon performance, and not guaranteed, but is estimated to be 2435,000
per annum. This results in an overall commitment to Peterborough City Council for 2018/19 of

approximately f900,000, this lease expires in 2030.

At the reporting end date the charity had outstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments

under non-cancellable operating leases, which fall due as follows:

2018
E

2017
E

Within one year
Between two and five years
In over five years

482,564
1,892,201
5,085,000

490,729
1,909,765
5,550,000

7,459,765 7,950,494

25 Cash generated from operations 2018 2017
f

(Deficit)/surpus for the year (416,809) (4,790)

Adjustments for:
Investment income recognised in statement of financial activities

Depreciation and impairment of tangible fixed assets
Difference between pension charge and cash contributions

(1,817)
208,698
182,000

(4,658)
268,069
71,000

Movements in working capital:

(Increase) in stocks
(Increase)/decrease in debtors

Increase in creditors
Increase/(decrease) in deferred income

(857)
(194,442)
521,752
100,112

(31,481)
12,844

177,922
(167,854)

Cash generated from operations 398,637 321,052

26 Related party transactions

Remuneration of key management personnel
The remuneration of key management personnel, which is also included in note 10 as employee costs, is

as follows.

2018
F

2017
f

Aggregate compensation 421,504 440, 982

202



VIVACITY CULTURE AND LEISURE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 201S

26 Related party transactions (Continued)

Transactions with related parties

Owing to the nature of the charity's operations and the composition of the board of trustees being drawn

from local public and private sector organisations, it is inevitable that transactions will take place with

organisations in which a member of the board of trustees may have an interest.

In particular the charity receives income for service delivery and has service level agreements with

Peterborough City Council, and the board of trustees includes representatives from the Council.

The financial statements do not include the cost of land, buildings and equipment used at minimal rent by

Vivacity Culture 8 Leisure, whose title rests with Peterborough City Council. It is not practicably possible to

attribute a value to this benefit.

Vivacity also manages funds on behalf of a consortium of voluntary organisations 'Peterborough

Presents. ..', of which Vivacity is the lead partner. Vivacity receives a grant to deliver their part of the

programme. At 31st March 2018 the charity held funds of f29, 170 (2017 - F89,884) in a separate bank

account on behalf of the consortium and these funds are not included in these accounts.

All other transactions involving such organisations are conducted in accordance with the charity's normal

procurement procedures.

203



This page is intentionally left blank

204



APPENDIX K 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

GUIDANCE FOR MEMBERS & OFFICERS WHO 

SERVE ON OUTSIDE BODIES 

 

 

A guide to the law for members and officers who are appointed 

to represent Peterborough City Council on another body 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

June 2019 

 

205



APPENDIX K 

 
 

 

1. INTRODUCTION  

 

1.1. Peterborough City Council (”the Council”) appoints members and, less often, officers to 

serve on a wide range of organisations outside the council, including as directors of 

companies, trustees of charities, members of management committees and other roles on 

public bodies and voluntary organisations.   These roles on outside bodies may give rise to 

occasional uncertainty about responsibilities and sometimes lead to conflicts of interest. 

For example, if an outside body comes into conflict with the Council and the member is a 

director or on the management committee of the outside body it is likely that the member’s 

prime duty would be to the outside body in the conduct of the outside body’s affairs. 

 

1.2. The purpose of this guidance is to summarise the legal position and responsibilities of 

members and officers who are appointed by the council to serve on outside bodies. It is not 

intended to be an exhaustive explanation of the law and if further advice is required the 

Monitoring Officer should be contacted.  

 

1.3.  This guidance does not cover any situation where a member or officer who chooses to sit 

on an outside body in their own private capacity – in this case they should ensure there is 

no conflict of interest with their position as a member or officer. 

 

1.4. Members and officers may be appointed by the Council to be an “observer” or to undertake 

a monitoring role at an outside body, facilitating exchanges of views or information as an 

extension of their council duties but taking no part in the outside body’s management or 

governance other than to attend and vote at annual or general meetings, or simply to 

attend. In this type of role members and officers will be mainly concerned with representing 

the council and will not have responsibility for the governance of the body. Care should be 

taken to ensure such attendance is minuted/recorded each time to correctly reflect this.  

 

2. GENERAL  

 

2.1 Before accepting the directorship or trusteeship of an external organisation, the member or 

officer should consider how onerous the responsibilities are likely to be and should only accept 

the office if satisfied that they have the time and capacity to undertake them.  

 

206



APPENDIX K 

 
 

2.2 Consideration should also be given to whether there is likely to be any significant conflict of 

interest between the role as a director or trustee and their role as a member or officer. If such a 

conflict is likely to arise to a significant degree then the role should not be taken on.  

 

2.3 The member or officer should also assess the risks of things going wrong which might raise 

the prospect of a personal liability. Matters to be taken into account include the nature of the 

functions of the outside body and the amount of money it holds or deals with. For example, 

some external companies handle considerable sums of money in the course of each year and 

have major functions. On the other hand, the risks associated with relatively small local 

charities are much less. 

 

2.4 Members and officers who serve on outside bodies must exercise independent judgement 

in the interests of the organisation in which they are involved. Whilst it is recognised that they 

may have a commitment to representing the Council on the outside organisation, they must 

also be aware that it is their responsibility to decide what view to take on any question before 

the organisation. Where a member or officer serves on the outside body in a representative 

capacity, this should be made clear to that body. There will be a fine line to tread between the 

duty to the outside body and to the Council.  

 

2.5 Ultimately the member or officer in acting as a Director or Trustee or member of a 

Management Committee of an outside body, must act in accordance with that body's interests, 

and not those of the Council or even the council tax payers at large. A mandate from the 

Council to vote one way or the other would put the member or officer in breach of the duty to 

the organisation. It is permissible to take account of the Council's wishes, but not to vote simply 

in accordance with them. The overriding duty in considering an item before the outside body is 

to vote in accordance with the interests of that organisation.  

 

2.6 A member or officer serving on an outside body must also ensure that avoidable loss is not 

incurred in managing that body. Individual responsibility cannot be avoided by not reading the 

papers or failing to ask for appropriate reports. Professional advice should also be sought 

where appropriate.  

 

2.7 If there is a major dispute between the Council and the outside body then the Council's 

representative can be placed in an untenable position. In these circumstances, the appointee 

should take advice from either the Chief Executive, the Monitoring Officer or the relevant Chief 

Officer.  

207



APPENDIX K 

 
 

 

2.8 At the end of the day, it is possible that a representative on an outside body may find 

themselves unable to adequately carry out their responsibilities properly, both as a member or 

officer of the Council and as a Director/Trustee/Committee Member of the outside body. That 

would be an exception, and should not deflect those appointed to outside bodies from being 

prepared to participate in the management and running of outside organisations.  

 

2.9 Finally, it is recommended that:-  

(a) Upon being appointed to an outside body, appointees obtain essential documents such 

as the outside body's governing document and the latest annual report and accounts  

(b) Clarify if there are any insurances or indemnities in place 

(c) Ensure the organisation has sound financial practices and procedures – take an interest 

in the business plan and other financial reports 

(d) Understand how decisions are made in the organisation including delegations of powers 

(e) Appointees to outside bodies should take advice from the s151 Officer or the Monitoring 

Officer (as appropriate) if they have any financial or other concerns about the body to 

which they have been appointed. 

 

3. COMPANY DIRECTORS  

 

3.1 The management of a company is generally the responsibility of a board of directors and 

the powers of the directors are usually set out in the company’s Articles of Association 

(rules which govern the company’s internal management). Directors are those who are 

appointed by the company to act in that capacity. 

 

3.2  Company Directors have the following duties:-  

 A fiduciary duty to the company (not individual shareholders) to act honestly and in 

good faith and in the best interests of the company as a whole. This means taking 

proper care of the assets of the company.  

 A general duty of care and skill to the company. This means that Directors must 

exercise a degree of skill as may reasonably be expected from someone with that 

individual's particular knowledge and experience. However, Directors are not deemed to 

be experts, but are expected to use due diligence and to obtain expert advice if 

necessary.  

 Directors must exercise independent judgement, although they may take account of 

the interests of any third party whom they represent. This may well require interests to 

208



APPENDIX K 

 
 

be declared (see below). However Directors cannot vote simply in accordance with the 

Council's mandate.  

 Directors are not allowed to make a profit from their position. They must therefore 

disclose any interests they or their family may have in relation to the company's 

contracts. Whether they are then allowed to vote will depend on the company's Articles 

of Association.  

 Directors must ensure compliance with the Companies Act in relation to the keeping 

of accounts and making of returns to the Registrar of Companies and the information to 

be shown on stationery.  

 There is a duty to have regard to the interests of the company's employees, 

particularly, for example, in respect of health and safety.  

 Directors also have a range of accounting and financial responsibilities, including 

the preparation of accounts for each financial year, ensuring accounting records are 

maintained sufficiently to demonstrate the company's day to day transactions, approving 

the annual accounts and laying them before a general meeting and ensuring that annual 

accounts and reports are sent to shareholders and anyone else entitled to receive them.  

 

3.3 Individual Directors can also be liable in certain circumstances, including the following:-  

 

 A company can only act within the scope set out in its Memorandum of Association, and 

those Directors who knowingly cause the company to act beyond these activities will be 

liable personally.  

 Directors may also be liable for breach of trust, if they misapply the money or property of 

the company. Directors may also be liable if they fail to take action to prevent the breach 

of a Co-Director of which they are aware. 

 In the event of a failure to act in accordance with the best interests of the company, or if 

Directors use their powers improperly or make a personal profit from their position as a 

Director, then they may be personally liable for loss to the company and may be 

required to give to the company the personal profit made.  

 If the level of skill and care shown by a Director falls below that which could reasonably 

be expected and the company suffers loss, the Director will be liable for the loss 

incurred. However, if it believes the Director acted honestly and reasonably, a Court 

may excuse the Director from this liability.  

 If a Director knows or ought to know that there is no reasonable prospect of the 

company avoiding liquidation, the Court may require the Director to contribute to the 

company's assets on liquidation if the company continues to trade. This is known as 

209



APPENDIX K 

 
 

wrongful trading. No such order will be made if the Court is satisfied that the Director 

took all reasonable steps to minimise the loss to the creditors.  

 Directors will also be liable if to their knowledge the company carried on business with 

intent to defraud creditors or any other person, or for any other fraudulent purpose.  

 Where a company fails to pay National Insurance contributions and this is due to fraud 

or neglect on the part of any director(s) of the company, they may be held personally 

responsible for the outstanding contributions.  

 

3.4 Finally, information (apart from confidential information) must be given to other councillors 

about their activities as required by the local authority.  

 

4. CHARITY TRUSTEES  

 

4.1 Trustees of a charity are responsible for the control and administration of a charity and 

retain personal liability. Trustees must acquaint themselves with the terms of the Trust. In the 

case of a charity which is also a company, these terms will be found in the Memorandum and 

Articles of Association. Other Trusts will be found in the document under which the charity was 

established, such as a will or deed of gift or constitution.  

 

4.2 Charity Trustees have the following duties:-  

 Trustees must act in accordance with the terms of the Trust.  

 The property of the charity must be used for the purposes for which the charity was set 

up. It must also be applied fairly between those properly entitled to benefit from it.  

 Trustees have a duty to exercise such care and skill as is reasonable in the 

circumstances having particular regard to any special knowledge or experience that they 

have or holds themselves out as having. In addition, where a Trustee acts in the course 

of a business or profession, particular regard must be had to any special knowledge or 

experience which it is reasonable to expect of a person acting in the course of that kind 

of business or profession. 

 Trustees must always act in the interests of the charity and of its beneficiaries or 

potential beneficiaries and without regard to their own private interests. This means that 

Charity Trustees must not put themselves in a position where their interests and duties 

conflict.  

 The work must generally be unpaid. Trustees may be paid for their expenses from the 

charity's income and, very occasionally, the Charity Commission may allow wider 

remuneration where this is in the interests of the charity.  

210



APPENDIX K 

 
 

 Trustees cannot benefit either directly or indirectly from the charity.  

 They must act reasonably and prudently in all matters relating to the charity and must 

always bear in mind the interests of the charity. They should manage the charity as 

carefully as if they were running their own business. Although they may delegate certain 

of their functions under the Trustee Act 2000 and also under any powers in the trust 

document, they remain legally responsible and must supervise and control the work of 

officers.  

 Trustees must act in accordance with all relevant legislation.  

 They have a duty to provide information to the Charity Commissioners. Most charities 

(except small ones with an annual income under £1000 a year) are required to register 

under the charities legislation. The Charity Commissioners rely on this information when 

making a decision about a charity, so it is very important that it is accurate. It is an 

offence to give the Charity Commissioners false or misleading information, or to alter, 

conceal or destroy charity documents which may be required by the Commissioners.  

 All registered charities are subject to a number of accounting and reporting 

requirements, depending on their income and expenditure. These involve maintaining 

proper accounts, preparing the annual statement of accounts and an annual report and 

in some cases submitting them to the Charity Commission; and where the charity's 

gross income and total expenditure exceeds £10,000, making an annual report to the 

Charity Commission. Charity trustees are under a duty to ensure that these accounting 

and reporting requirements are carried out and to approve the annual report and 

accounts.  

 The accounts of registered charities with a gross income or total expenditure exceeding 

£10,000 must, at the option of the trustees, be either audited or independently 

examined. In addition if either income or expenditure has been more than £250,000 in 

either of the previous two financial years then accounts must be audited by a registered 

auditor.  

 Retaining accounting records and statements of account for at least 6 years. 

 

5. MANAGEMENT COMMITTEES – UNINCORPORATED ASSOCIATIONS 

 

5.1 Groups which are not charitable trusts or limited companies are "unincorporated 

associations" and have no separate legal identity from their members. The rules governing the 

members' duties and liabilities will be set out in a constitution, which is simply an agreement 

between the members as to how the organisation will operate. Usually the constitution will 

211



APPENDIX K 

 
 

provide for a management committee to be responsible for the everyday running of the 

organisation. An unincorporated organisation may be charitable and registerable as a charity. 

 

5.2 Broadly, management committee members must act within the terms of the constitution, 

and must take reasonable care in exercising their powers.  

 

5.3 Generally, members of management committees are liable for the acts of the organisation, 

but are entitled to an indemnity from the funds of the organisation if they have acted properly. If 

there are not enough funds, the committee members are personally liable for the shortfall. If 

one person is appointed by the constitution to act as the agent of the organisation for certain 

purposes, then that person acts as the agent of all the members, who have joint liability for the 

agent's actions. Members of the management committee will have a personal liability if they act 

outside the authority given them or if they do not comply with the law.  

 

5.4 Exceptions apply to certain consultative/advisory bodies such as EELGA & LGA where the 

representative will normally be expected to act in the Council’s interests. 

 

6. REGULATED COMPANIES 

 

6.1  A company that is influenced by the Council (20% shareholding or more) or controlled by 

the Council (50% shareholding or more) will be a regulated company under the Local 

Authorities (Companies) Order 1995. This piece of legislation has a number of restrictions 

for members that site on the board of regulated local authority companies, referring to them 

as “regulated directors”. 

 

6.2 These restrictions include: 

 The maximum amount of remuneration is the greatest amount which would be 

payable by the Council in respect of a comparable duty performed on behalf of the 

Council, less any amount paid by the Council to the regulated director for duties to 

the Company; 

 The maximum amount of travelling or subsistence allowance which would be 

payable to that director by the Council of which he is a member if the relevant duty 

were an approved duty for the purposes of s174 of the Local Government Act 1972 

 When a regulated director becomes disqualified for membership of the Council, 

he/she must be removed as a director of the regulated company. 

 

212



APPENDIX K 

 
 

     6.3 Where members sit on the board of an influenced or regulated company there will be an 

inherent conflict of interest in their roles as the Companies Act 2006 requires Directors to 

consider the best interests of the company and not the shareholders.  However due to the 

restrictions on the remuneration and expenses of members in relation to such companies 

members are unlikely to have a disclosable pecuniary interest.  Members should 

nonetheless declare their conflict of interest at Council meetings and avoid voting on or 

taking Council decisions in relation to such companies. 

 

7. OTHER PUBLIC BODIES  

 

7.1 There are bodies created by an Act of Parliament to carry out particular functions and 

whose constitution is set out in the legislation relating to that specific body. Examples include 

the Broads Authority, Internal Drainage Boards and school governing bodies.  

 

7.2 The powers of the members of the body and duties and liabilities of those members 

individually and collectively depend upon the wording of the legislation in question. In general 

terms, however, the position of a member is similar to that of a councillor. It is therefore wise 

for a member of any of these bodies to obtain information for themselves from that body on its 

powers and duties, its Standing Orders and other procedures which they must follow and 

financial or other regulations which govern the conduct of its business.  

 

7.3 In addition, conflicts of interest can occasionally arise for such appointees. In this respect, 

the general provisions described in Section 2 above will apply.  

 

PARTNERSHIP BOARDS 

 

7.4 Finally, there is the developing area of partnerships and partnership boards. Generally, 

these are not legal entities in their own right and members are appointed purely to represent 

the Council. In these circumstances the specific duties referred to above will not therefore tend 

to apply nor will there be a potential for a conflict of interest. On the other hand, the position 

may well be different if a separate legal entity is formed as part of the partnership working. 

 

8. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  

 

8.1 If you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in a matter to be considered at the meeting 

and that interest is on your Register of Interests you must not speak or vote on the matter. In 

213



APPENDIX K 

 
 

many case (but not all) cases a Member will not have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (and 

therefore need not make any declaration)) if the matter relates to an outside body to which the 

Council have appointed the Member as its representative. 

 

8.2 Members do however need to pay particular attention to whether a body on which they 

have a beneficial interest (which includes a body corporate of which they are a director – NB. 

“director” includes being a member of the committee of management of an industrial and 

provident society) has or is likely to have a contractual relationship with the council (NB. which 

includes grant agreements). If this is the case then this is a specific disclosable pecuniary 

interest under the Localism Act 2011 as set out in the council’s code of conduct and it need to 

be declared as such and the member must not take part in any decision making. 

 

8.3 If you do not have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest you may nevertheless have a “non-

statutory disclosable interest” in a matter to be discussed if it affects:  

 your well-being or financial position  

 that of your family or close friends  

 that of a club or society in which you have a management role  

 that of another public body of which you are a member to a greater extent than 

others in your ward.  

If that is the case then you must declare such an interest but can speak and vote on the 

matter, unless the interest is “one which a member of the public with knowledge of the 

relevant facts would reasonably regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice your 

judgement of the public interest” (s.2.3(b) of the council’s code of conduct sets out what 

action should be taken). Please seek the advice of the council’s Monitoring Officer if unsure 

about what needs to be declared in order to help avoid the appearance of bias. 

 

8.4 When members discuss at Council meetings matters relating to an outside body on which 

they serve, they may take account of that outside body's interest. However, they must not vote 

simply in accordance with the mandate of that outside body. In short, the primary consideration 

is the public interest.  

 

8.5 Officers should have regard to the Officer’s Code of Conduct and discuss all potential 

conflicts of interest with their line manager, seeking advice from the council’s Monitoring Officer 

where appropriate. Written file notes should be made and kept of all advice given and action 

taken. 

 

214



APPENDIX K 

 
 

9. INDEMNITIES  

 

9.1 An outside body can provide indemnities for its members as follows: 

 

a) Companies can now give their Directors indemnities. However, such indemnities cannot 

cover:-  

(i) the Director's liability to the company itself or to other companies within the same 

group;  

(ii) fines imposed on a Director in criminal proceedings or in respect of a sum payable to 

a Regulatory Authority by way of penalty for non-compliance with any requirement of a 

regulatory nature; or  

(iii) Liabilities incurred by a Director in defending criminal proceedings where convicted, 

or in defending any civil proceedings brought by the company, or an associated 

company in which judgement is made against such Director.  

 

(b)  With regard to Charitable Trusts, an indemnity can be given from the Trust Fund provided 

the Trustee has acted properly and within their powers. Trustees may take out insurance to 

protect themselves against personal liability, but not for criminal acts, fraud etc. There will 

be no problem if the Trustees themselves pay the premiums but if they are paid out of the 

Charitable Funds the Trustees will need to consent to the Charity Commission unless the 

Trust Deed specifically allows it.  

 

(c)  With regard to Management Committees, members will be entitled to an indemnity if they 

act in accordance with the Constitution and are not at fault. It is also possible to obtain 

insurance but if the organisation is to pay the premium it must be permitted by the 

Constitution.  

 

10. RELATED ISSUES  

 

a) Occasionally, the Council will be represented on outside bodies by third parties, rather than 

members or officers. This guidance applies in principle to these representatives, although 

some parts of it will necessarily not apply.  

b) From time to time, officers are, as a result of their position with the Council, appointed to 

serve on an outside body by the body itself, rather than by the Council. Examples include 

serving on the managing body of a professional association or appointment to a national 

215



APPENDIX K 

 
 

body as a local authority representative. Again, most of the principles contained in this 

guidance will apply to that situation, depending on the nature of the outside body. 

c) Finally, officers may from time to time be asked to serve in their private capacity on outside 

bodies funded by the Council. This can often give rise to a conflict of interest, particularly in 

the situation where the officer is employed within the funding department. In these 

circumstances, the Council takes the view that there will be circumstances where an officer 

should not serve on the outside body because of the potential for a conflict of interest.  

 

 

 

11. FURTHER INFORMATION  

 

If you require any further information about the issues raised in this Guidance Note please 

contact the Council’s Monitoring Officer. 

 

216


	Agenda
	3 Shareholder Cabinet Sub-Committee - Overview Report
	Appendix A - Governance Structure
	4 Local Authority Trading Company (LATCo)*
	4. Appendix C - Local Authority Trading Company (LATCo)


	Appendix B - Local Authority Trading Company LATCo - Cabinet Report - 17 Dec 2018
	4 Local Authority Trading Company (LATCo)*

	Appendix C -  BSP Abbre Accounts 31.03.18
	Appendix D - EPCIC Accounts 2018
	Appendix E - OP 2018-06-27-2492-Signed full accounts-31-3-2018
	Appendix F - PIP LLP Consolidated Accounts YE 31.03.2018
	Appendix G - Medesham Homes LLP Accounts 2018
	Appendix H - NPS Peterborough Signed Accounts 2017-18 (1)
	Appendix I - Peterborough Museum Dated Accounts 31-03-2018
	Appendix J - Vivacity Signed accounts 2017-2018
	Appendix K - PCC Guidance for Members Serving on Outside Bodies


